REGULAR MEETING
OF
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Monday, February 23, 2015
2:00 P.M.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT (Public may address the Board on any subject matter not on the
agenda and within the Board’s jurisdiction. See “Notice to the Public” below. Please

make your comments from the podium once acknowledged by the President of the
Board.)

CONSENT AGENDA (All items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine
and will be approved or rejected in a single motion. Any item placed on the Consent
Agenda may be removed and placed on the Regular Agenda for discussion and possible
action upon the request of any Board Member.)

Action: Recommend Approval of Consent Agenda by motion and roll call vote of the
Board:

a.  Minutes January 26, 2015 Regular Board Meeting; February 5, 2015 Special
Board Meeting

b.  Investment of Funds

¢ Financial Reports

e [nvestment Reports

Payment of Claims

Progress Report on Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Program

Fisheries Division Report

Operations Division Report

Monthly Cachuma Project Reports

Amendment to CCC Contract-Oak Tree Program

S 0 f o

“THE SANTA BARBARA COUNTY CLOUD SEEDING PROGRAM, AN
OVERVIEW?” BY DENNIS GIBBS, SENIOR HYDROLOGIST, SANTA
BARBARA COUNTY WATER AGENCY

Action: Receive information regarding Santa Barbara County’s Cloud Seeding

Program

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF HDR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT CONTRACT AMENDMENT
Action: Recommend approval by motion and roll call vote of the Board




10.

11.

VERBAL REPORTS FROM BOARD COMMITTEES
Receive verbal information regarding the following committee meetings:
e Administrative Committee Meeting — February 19, 2015

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
Receive information from the General Manager on topics pertaining to COMB,

including but not limited to the following:

e USBR Site Inspection (Category 1 — Cross Connection Status)
NP Elevator Rehabilitation

Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF)
Encroachment

Drought Emergency Pumping Facility Project

1. Construction Status

2. Grant Funding

e COMB Office Buildings

e Division Manager Comments

MEMBER AGENCY WATER ALLOCATIONS - ADOPTION OF DISPUTE
RESOLUTION PROCEDURE AND REMEDIES

Action: Recommend approval by roll call vote on one motion unless member requests
separate consideration

DIRECTORS’ REQUESTS FOR AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING

[CLOSED SESSION]: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: EXISTING
AND POTENTIAL LITIGATION

a. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)]
Name of case: Andrew Brown and Jessica Brown vs. Cachuma Operation &
Maintenance Board, Santa Barbara Superior Court Case No. 1438821

b.  [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)]
Name of case: California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et
al.,United States District Court, CDCA, Case No., 2:14-CV-7744

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION

[Government Code Section 54957.7]

Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable
{Government Code Section 54957.1]

MEETING SCHEDULE
e March 23, 2015 at 2:00 P.M., COMB Office

o Board Packages Available on COMB Website
www.cachuma-board.org




13. COMB ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE TO PUBLIC

Posting of Agenda: This agenda was posted at COMB’s offices, located at 3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, California,
93105 and on COMB’s website, in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2. The agenda contains a brief general
description of each item to be considered by the Governing Board. The Board reserves the right to modify the order in which
agenda items are heard. Copies of staff reports or other written documents relating to each item of business are on file at the
COMB offices and are available for public inspection during normal business hours. A person with a question concerning any of
the agenda items may call COMB’s General Manager at (805) 687-4011.

Written materials: In accordance with Government Code Section 54957.5, written materials relating to an item on this agenda
which are distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours (for a regular meeting) or 24 hours (for a special meeting) will be
made available for public inspection at the COMB offices during normal business hours. The written materials may also be posted
on COMB’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the scheduled meeting.

Public Comment: Any member of the public may address the Board on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Board that is not
scheduled for as an agenda item before the Board. The total time for this item will be limited by the President of the Board. The
Board is not responsible for the content or accuracy of statements made by members of the public. No action will be taken by the
Board on any Public Comment item.

Americans with Disabilities Act: in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to review
agenda materials or participate in this meeting, please contact the Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board office at (805) 687-
4011 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to enable the Board to make reasonable arrangements.

Note: If you challenge in court any of the Board’s decisions refated to the listed agenda items you may be limited to raising only
those issues you or someone else raised at any public hearing described in this notice or in written correspondence to the Governing
Board prior to the public hearing.



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING
of the
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

held at
3301 Laurel Canyon Road, Santa Barbara, CA
Monday, January 26, 2015

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 2:01 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson who
chaired the meeting. Those in attendance were:

Directors present:

Lauren Hanson Goleta Water District

Doug Morgan Montecito Water District

Kevin Walsh SYR Water Conservation District, ID No. 1

Dale Francisco City of Santa Barbara

Polly Holcombe Carpinteria Valley Water District
Others present:

Randall Ward William Carter

Janet Gingras Jane Usher

Dave Stewart Charles Hamilton

Ruth Snodgrass Tim Robinson

Nina Pisani Phil Walker

Dana McGrew Adelle Capponi

Giana Magnoli Kelley Dyer

Joshua Haggmark Bill Rosen

Sarah Horwath Duane Stroup

Brad Joos Chris Dahlstrom

2. Public Comment
Phil Walker commented on the weather relating to the drought.
3. Introduction of Newly Appointed Directors to the COMB Board

President Hanson introduced the newly appointed Directors to the COMB Board:
Polly Holcombe from Carpinteria Valley Water District, and Kevin Walsh from the
Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District, ID No. 1. Also introduced were
newly appointed alternates, Brad Joos from the Santa Ynez River Water
Conservation District, ID No. 1, and Bill Rosen from Goleta Water District.

4. Consent Agenda
a. Minutes:
November 17, 2014 Regular Board Meeting

ltem #3a
Page 1



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

b. Investment Funds
Financial Report
Investment Report

c. Payment of Claims

Director Francisco moved to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Director
Morgan, passed by roll call vote 6/0/1:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson
Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: Holcombe
5. Audit Presentation from Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP

Ms. Danna McGrew and Ms. Nina Pisani, Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf, LLP, presented
the FY 2013-14 Audit for discussion and review. The Draft Financial Statements for
Fiscal Year June 30, 2014 and the Independent Auditors Report were included in the
board packet. The auditors did not identify any management concerns or reportable
conditions in conducting the audit and issued a clean opinion.

The Administrative Committee met with the Auditors on January 21, 2015 for
review and recommended submittal to the Board of Directors for acceptance.

Director Morgan moved to accept the FY 2013-14 Audited Financial Statements as
presented, seconded by Director Francisco, passed by a roll call vote, 7/0/0:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

Phil Walker commented.
6. Approve Single Audit Expense Budget Adjustment

Randall Ward, General Manager, reported that during fiscal year 2014, COMB
received Federal based grant funding through the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife Grant Program for the Quiota Creek Crossing No. 1 project. Because these
funds exceeded $500,000 and were generated through Federal based funding,
COMB is required by law to conduct a single audit. This audit requirement was
conducted as a component of COMB’s annual audit by Bartlett, Pringle & Wolf,
LLP. The single audit expense is an addition to the funds available for current year
audit expenses and exceeds the amount allocated in the approved budget.

The single audit was reviewed by the Administrative Committee and recommended
it be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

Director Holcombe moved to approve the recommended budget adjustment for the
single audit expense in an amount not-to-exceed $10,000. Funds will be reallocated
from the Unemployment Insurance line item to the Audit expense line item in the

ltem #3a
Page 2



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Mesting
January 26, 2013

current fiscal year budget, seconded by Director Walsh, passed by a roll call vote,

7/0/0:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson
Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

7. COMB Board Committee Appointments

President Hanson considered committee appointments due to recent changes in the
Directors appointed to the Board. The following appointments were made:

COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE ALTERNATE
NAME CHAIR/IMEMBER MEMBER MEMBER
Administrative Chair

(Finance, Lauren Hanson Dale Francisco Polly Holcombe
Personnel,
Legal)
Chair
Operations Dale Francisco Doug Morgan Lauren Hanson
Fisheries Chair

Lauren Hanson

Polly Holcombe

Kevin Walsh

Public Outreach

Chair
Polly Holcombe

Doug Morgan

Lauren Hanson

Lake Cachuma
Qak Tree

Chair
Doug Morgan

Kevin Walsh

Polly Holcombe

8. Resolutions Relating to COMB Bank Accounts

Janet Gingras, Administrative Manager, reported that the recent changes in Directors
required resolutions to change signature authorizations on the COMB Bank
Accounts. The adoption of Resolution Numbers 591 and 592 adds the Directors who
chose to be a signatory on the COMB Renewal Fund and Trust Fund Accounts, and
the COMB General Fund Account held at The Bank of Santa Barbara.

Director Morgan moved to adopt Resolution Numbers 591 and 592 as presented,
seconded by Director Francisco, passed by a roll call vote, 7/0/0:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

9. Verbal Reports from Board Committees

ltem #3a
Page 3



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

President Hanson reported on the Administrative Committee meetings held
December 4, 2014 and January 21, 2015.

10. Consider Approval of HDR Professional Services Agreement Contract
Amendment

Randall Ward, General Manager, reported that in December 2013, the COMB Board
authorized the General Manager to enter into a Professional Services Agreement
(PSA) with HDR Engineering, Inc., for the Emergency Pumping Facilities Project
(EPFP). To continue the engineering/project management services related to facility
operation and maintenance of the EPFP, staff is proposing to amend and extend the
existing Professional Services Agreement through the end of FY 2014-15. The cost
of the additional professional services provided by HDR Engineering totals $51,516.

Director Morgan requested that the Board be given the opportunity to see the Task
Orders prior to approval. The amendment and extension to the existing HDR
Professional Services Agreement will come back to the Board in February.

The amendment to HDR s contract was reviewed by the Administrative Committee
and recommended submittal to the Board of Directors for approval.

11. Consider Approval of Cushman Contracting Change Orders
a. Intake Tower Fish Screen Refurbishment
Randall Ward, General Manager, reported that 3 of the 5 fish screens that
protect the intake tower are badly corroded and unable to meet protection
obligations and should be repaired. Using the existing contractor, Cushman
Contracting Corporation, is the most cost effective option, avoiding the
mobilization of equipment

The change order request was reviewed by the Administrative Committee and
recommended it be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

Director Holcombe moved to grant the COMB General Manager authority to
issue a contract change order to Cushman Contracting Corporation to refurbish
three fish screens in an amount not-to-exceed $47,000, seconded by Director
Morgan, passed by a roll call vote, 7/0/0:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

Phil Walker commented.

b. Emergency Pumping Facility Project Access Road Improvement
Randall Ward, General Manager, reported that the Emergency Pumping Facility
Project yard and access road requires all-weather access for operations. The
access was compromised after the recent rains. COMB and HDR. determined a
rock based all-weather access road is the most cost effective solution.

ltem #3a
Page 4



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

12.

13.

The original CEQA permit did not consider the use of crushed rock to improve
the access road. COMB staff did obtain an amendment to the CEQA permit to
allow permanent placement of imported crushed rock. COMB was required to
perform minor mitigation, which was accomplished by securing Christmas trees
to the bottom of the Lake for fish habitat.

The access road improvement was reviewed by the Administrative Committee
and recommended it be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

Director Francisco moved to authorize the COMB General Manager to issue a
change order to Cushman Contracting Corporation to place up to 500 tons of
2 Y2 inch crushed rock under COMB’s direction in an amount not-to-exceed
$20,000, seconded by Director Morgan, passed by a roll call vote, 7/0/0:
Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

Information on Capital Elevator Change Order for Lighting — North Portal
Elevator

Randall Ward, General Manager, reported that the seven lights in the North Portal
Shaft and Gate Chamber have been corroded from the seepage into the elevator
shaft. Replacement of this equipment was necessary to meet state permit
obligations. Mr. Ward issued a change order to Capital Elevator in an amount not-
to-exceed $19,300. This expenditure will not increase the approved budgeted
project cost of elevator rehabilitation.

Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Purchase Order Contract for the
Replacement of Server Software and Hardware

Randall Ward, General Manager, explained that the existing COMB computer
support infrastructure is largely obsolete and has reached the end of useful life. As
approved in the adopted budget, hardware and software will be replaced in the
budget year. The funds will be used to acquire the necessary hardware and software
for updating the COMB servers, stabilize security vulnerabilities, provide the

necessary backup system for the SCADA system, and update the XP workstations to
current software standards.

The computer support infrastructure was reviewed by the Administrative Committee
and recommend it be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

Director Holcombe moved to authorize the COMB General Manager to execute a
purchase order contract for acquisition and installation of server system hardware
and operating systems replacement not-to-exceed $30,000 as presented, seconded by
Director Walsh, passed by a roli call vote, 7/0/0:

Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson

Nayes: None

Abstain/Absent: None

ltem #3a
Page 5



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

14. General Manager’s Report

Randall Ward, General Manager, highlighted his report included in the board packet.
Mr. Ward reported that two Member Units were to prepare surveys of cross
connections and take corrective action. One has responded and the other has
contracted with a certified cross connection inspector. The North Portal Elevator
rehabilitation has been completed and Cal/OSHA issued a temporary operating
permit. Mr. Ward also reported that the County of Santa Barbara and COMB have
developed the coordination necessary for timely and appropriate responses to
encroachments. Staff is collecting information of Easement Deeds for the Right-of-
Way Program. The drought emergency pumping system is operational and is in
stand-by mode. The grant funding agreement documents have been completed, a
press conference was held January 20, 2015 with Senator Hannah-Beth Jackson and
Assemblymember Das Williams. The recent storms exposed structural problems
with the Administration building. The Administration Committee will be informed
with findings and a replacement effort.

15. Progress Report on Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Program

Randall Ward, General Manager, highlighted the report on the Oak Tree Program
included in the board packet. The planting of new oak trees began in December
2014 and will continue through early February 2015. New trees are currently being
planted at Storke Flats, and additional plantings will be done near Bradbury Dam.

16. Operations Division Report

Dave Stewart, Operations Manager, included a board packet report describing the
activities performed by the Operations field crew staff for the previous month.

17. Fisheries Division Report

Tim Robinson, Sr. Resources Scientist, highlighted the Fisheries Division report
included in the board packet. Mr. Robinson updated the Board on the Tributary
Projects and the Hilton Creek Watering System repairs and upgrades.

Phil Walker commented.
18. Monthly Cachuma Project Reports

a. Cachuma Water Reports

The monthly water reports for December 2014 were included in the board
packet.

b. Cachuma Reservoir Current Conditions

The Lake Cachuma Daily Operations report through January 22, 2015 was
included in the board packet.

Item #3a
Page 6



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

19.

20.

21.

c. Lake Cachuma Quagga Survey

The County’s summary of Aquatic Invasive Species Inspection Program for
November and December 2014 was included in the board packet.

Directors’ Requests for Agenda Items for Next Meeting

Director Holcombe requested that the Title Transfer be added to a future agenda.

Jane Usher, General Counsel, provided information on closed session Brown Act
rules pertaining to a JPA. Ms. Usher announced that the Board would go into
closed session as stated in the agenda Item #20, a, b, and c.

The Board went into closed session at 4:10 p.m.

[Closed Session]: Conference with Legal Counsel: Existing and Potential
Litigation

a. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)]
Name of case: Andrew Brown and Jessica Brown vs. Cachuma Operation &
Maintenance Board, Santa Barbara Superior Court Case No. 1438821

b. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4)]

Name of case: California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et al.,
United States District Court, CDCA, Case No., 2:14-CV-7744

c. [Government Code Section 54956.9]
Claim of Nash — Rejection Letter

Reconvene Into Open Session

[Government Code Section 54957.7]

Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable
[Government Code Section 54957.1]

The Board came out of closed session at 6:35 p.m.

The report out of closed session was:

20a.  Approval has been given by the COMB Board, to Counsel, to take all

appropriate action in the pending matter, including filing a cross complaint
as may be necessary.

20b.  No reportable action at this time

20c.  The Board voted7/0/0 to reject the claim of Nash
Ayes: Walsh, Morgan, Francisco, Holcombe, Hanson
Nayes: None
Absent/Abstain: None

ltem #3a
Page 7



Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Board of Directors Meeting
January 26, 2015

22. Meeting Schedule

e The next regular Board meeting will be held February 23, 2015 at 2:00 p-m
eThe Agendas and Board Packets are available on the COMB website,
www.cachuma-board.org

23. COMB Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Randall Ward, Secretary of the Board
APPROVED:

Lauren Hanson, President of the Board

Approved -

Unapproved -\

.

ltem #3a
Page 8



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING
of the
CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
held at
3301 Laurel Canyon Road
Santa Barbara, CA
Thursday, February 5, 2015

Note: This is a special meeting of the Governing Board called in accordance with Government
Code Section 54956. Other than the listed agenda items, no other business will be conducted by the
Governing Board.

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

The meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m. by President Lauren Hanson, who chaired
the meeting. Those in attendance were:

Directors Present:

Lauren Hanson Goleta Water District

Dale Francisco City of Santa Barbara

Doug Morgan Montecito Water District

Polly Holcombe Carpinteria Valley Water District

Kevin Walsh SYR Water Conservation District, ID#1
Others present

Randall Ward Jane Usher

Janet Gingras Ruth Snodgrass

2. Public Comment
There were no public comments.

3. [Closed Session]: Conference with Legal Counsel: Existing and Potential Litigation
a. [Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4)]

Name of case: California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et al,,
United States District Court, CDCA Case No., 2:14-CV-7744

Jane Usher, General Counsel, announced the Board would go into closed session as a
continuance of the closed session at the January 23, 2015 Regular Board meeting.
Pending Litigation, California Trout, Inc. v. United States Bureau of Reclamation et al.

The Board went into closed session at 2:07 p.m.

ltem #3a
Page 9



Board of Directors Special Meeting
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
February §, 2015

4. Reconvene Into Open Session
[Government Code Section 54957.7]
Disclosure of actions taken in closed session, as applicable
[Government Code Section 54957.1]
The Board came out of closed session at 3:13 p.m.

There was no reportable action out of closed session.

5. COMB Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Randall Ward, Secretary of the Board

APPROVED:

Lauren Hanson, President of the Board

Approved -

Unapproved -

ltem #3a
Page 10



211812015

Accrual Basis Statement of Net Assets

As of January 31, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
TRUST FUNDS
1210 - WARREN ACT TRUST FUND
1220 - RENEWAL FUND
Total TRUST FUNDS

1050 - GENERAL FUND
1100 - REVOLVING FUND
Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1010 - PETTY CASH
1200 - LAIF
1303 - Bradbury SOD Act Assmnts Rec
1304 - Lauro Dam SOD Assesmnt Rec
1400 - PREPAID INSURANCE

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

1500 - VEHICLES

1505 - OFFICE FURN & EQUIPMENT

1510 - MOBILE OFFICES

1515 - FIELD EQUIPMENT

1525 - PAVING

1550 - ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets
1910 - LT Bradbury SOD Act Assess Rec
1920 - LT Lauro SOD Act Assess Rec
1921 - Loan Receivable - EPFP

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

608,930.52
148,159.98

757,0980.50

948,918.28
73,861.30
1,779,870.08

500.00
3,897.96
78,876.00
13,818.00
18,126.72
115,017.68

1,894,887.76

431,604.76
405,274.68
97,803.34
517,530.41
38,361.00
-1,348,556.82
142,007.37

5,334,042.07

964,788.00
1,701,317.00
7,990,148.07

10,027,043.20

ltem #3b
Page 1



211812015 COMB

Accrual Basis Statement of Net Assets
As of January 31, 2015

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
Liahilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2200 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 597,955.42
Total Accounts Payable 597,955.42
Other Current Liabilities
Payroll-DepPrm Admin 109.24
Payroll-DepPrm FD 462
Payroll-DepPrm Ops 13.86
2505 - ACCRUED WAGES 28,700.35
2550 - VACATION/SICK 124,333.16
2561 - BRADBURY DAM SOD ACT 78,676.65
2563 - LAURO DAM SOD ACT 13,818.00
2565 - ACCRUED INTEREST SOD ACT 87,008.00
2580 - DEFERRED REVENUE 757,080.50
Total Other Current Liabilities 1,089,754.36
Total Current Liabilities 1,687,709.78
Long Term Liabilities
2602 - LT SOD Act Liability-Bradbury 5,334,042.07
2603 - LT SOD Act Liability - Lauro 954,789.00
2604 - OPEB LT Liability 595,690.00
2605 - Loan Payable - EPFP 1,701,317.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 8,585,838.07
Total Liabilities 10,273,547.85
NET POSITION
3901 - Retained Net Assets 372,837.14
Net income -619,341.79
Total Net Assets -246,504.65
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION 10,027,043.20
ltem #3b

Page 2



1 oBuyg

%8S 6L'ove's” 00'g98'22 L8'6L0EL 000 %Z8S 61'9¥E'6" 00'99e'zT Lg'610'EL Yold 00 Qd - 254¥
%Z'L9 61°968'12- 00'18£'88 L8ap've 000 %Z'19 6196812 00'1oe'ss LYer'Ye SH3d Gd - 191y
%O SE'EVE b 00°L£6'86 LO'EEB'ES 000 %9'YS £6'EYE P 00°/£6'86 L0'E66'CS OM P UIEOH Od - 08Iy
%40 00'88e2H- 0064624 0028 00'0 %20 00'88C'Z4- 00’5482 0048 M - OP1Y JRUOSEOS - 611y
%824 sz 8l'0L 005821 §2285') 000 %8t SZI8L°04- 00°§LETH GL'/85") SN - oplY jpuosees - gLiy
%EL 00glZ'eL- 00'GLE'2L 00’654 00’0 %E'L 00'94Z'eL" 00'sLETL 00654 8- oply jeuosees - Liiy L2 €D
%L°6C £L169'8- 00'GLE°TL LeLLe'e 000 %L62 €L169'8- 00'5L8'2L yrayi:ys U - pjY jBuoBReS - SLLY Q#u Q
%G8 05461 4L 00'6LE'2L 05 LIt 000 %56 05461 L1 00582 0g'4LL'L of - apjy jRuosEoS - Fily (o))
%0y B9°L25'89" 00°'981'06 Z1'859'1e 000 %O'vZ 80°£25'89" 00'991'06 Z1'859'tZ weiBoid easL R0 - vOIY £ (U
“%98L £ELPE'CL- 00'G96°18 Fi- AN T4 [+X] %Ha8l £EIYTEL- 00'596°LS FL-AYY: 4 1sifojoig - oLy @ D..
%0'L8 £6'VER'EL 00'950'22 20°19E'88 000 %018 £6'VEOEL- 00'980'¢4 10°198'85 isifiofolg 100foid - ZoLy +=
%2'ZL 20e2L'0Z- 00'E99'VL £6'6£6'ES 000 %zl 20'82L'02- 00°€99'vL £6'BE6'ES 1SUB[DE 80IN0S0Y JOHAS - LOLY
SIIHSIS - HOBYT - 00LF
%0001 80°0 000 900 800 000 jauedesas|q Lol Y - 000F
%9'28 £9'284'12 000008y piFitata %9'26 £028L'ie- 00°000°9Y ELTYE 000 SASNIJXI YIHLO - 005 [B30L
%0'ZE 81°168'L- 00'000'€ 298014 %028 81'468'L- 00°000'S 29'80L"} 000 Bujupe) - goge
%665 £L°085'e 00°000'8 Leesy'y %655 £L088'E" 000008 LZesr'y 00°0 SNOBURHBISN - S0
%E'ET 26'GH0'e- 00000 80°¥56 %E'ET Z6°Sp0'e- 00000 80056 000 S80lA168 JOWIO0 B VSN - OSE
%b'95 o6'ove' L 00°000'84 #0'€51'01 %85 96'ov8'L- 0000084 vO'€51'01 000 SUOHRIUNBWOD .« COGE
%LES SO6LLT 000009 $6°022'E %LEG S062L'2- 00°000'8 S6'0TC'E 000 SULOJUN - 209€
%9'L9 6.'889°2- 00°000°L LZeY %919 62°9988'2- 00°000'2 L2y 000 sapiAn - L0se
SHSNIXS HIHLO - 005€
%L0L 89°6v8' v 00'000°08 ZL0SE'S %204 88'649'vr 00°000°05 [AN ] 000 S3I1ddNS ¥ SIVINILYN - 00VE [Bl0L
%80 LPG1I8'6" 00°000'0L £5'8 %80 1y'518%8" 00'000'04 £5'P8 000 SIOAIGE0Y - COVE
%Yo £P'8r0'yL- 0000061 15'€56 %99 [32:TONIN 00°000'51 15°€56 000 sproy g sBuipiing - Zove
%Z'LL 86°£89'02" 00'000'52 20°ZIEY %E'LY 8628902~ 00°000°52 20ZIEY 000 IS g BARA Yol HINPUY - LOKE
. $3ddNE B SIVRIZLVMN - 00ve
%E'EE $9'p82'9r 00°000°0L 9E'SEL'E %6'CE yoroz'sr- 00°000'02 9E'GEL'ET 000 HOYYT LOVHINOD « 00EE 18101
%0'0 00°000'0L~ 0000004 000 %00 0000001~ 00°000°0L 00’0 000 seojateg ospy ‘BupesuiBug . yoce
%585 SLy6e's 00°000'0% S2'S0L'H) %S'85 SLY6Z'8" 00°000'02 STSOL'H 000 sioaiesey - £02T
%5'2e 68°L05°€L" 00'000°02 L426b'9 %SZE 68°L0G'E4- 00'000'02 LLZ6P'9 000 spuoy ¥ sBuipiing - Z0eT
%LLT 00'Zer'yL- 00°000°02 00'8e5's %LLT 00°2Zor'vi~ 0000002 00'BES'S 000 SBIN P BAIRA Uejol AInpUoD - 0SS
UOHVT LOVHINOD - 00£¢
%852 bEOpe'ss- 00000'62 99'e5E'61 %8'6Z ¥E'9pO'Se- 00'000'52 99'€5e'6} 000 LINIWDINDT 7 HIA 002 (0L
%6'1LE Zaeop'e- 00°000'G 8p'vES't %6'LE z5's0v'e" 00°000's 8yves't 000 SNOSUB|IBISIY - $0ZE
%598 £8'9ll'e 000006 A% ) %G9 £8'9L1°¢- 000006 eze't 00'0 ey susudinba - goze
%8'Q 62'5E9'2E- 000005 LLPOE'S %89 62989'28- 00°000'6€ LLYOE'T 000 {endeg poxid « 202
%2’k oLgzy'al- 000000 0E'LiS'EL %T'GY 0L'82k'9L- 00'000'0E 0e'bSEL 000 a0y dinb3eiIUeA - LOZE
LINIWCINDI 7 HIA 0028
%g'GS 18°062'¢9E" 00'98L'818 EL'gpb'asy %355 19°062'€9¢" 00'9EL'81L8 £LGhr'SsY 000 SNOLLYHIJO - HOBYT - 00LC
%00 000 000 000 000 000 TIOHAVA [B10L
%0'0 000 000 000 000 000 Qd-88019
%00 000 000 000 000 00°0 45016
TIOHAVS
ssuadxy
%E'LS 10'022'66E' - 00°/28'G16'8  66'009'9.5'Y %Y'LG 16°650'219'6-  00'629'22v'L  B0ZZYGIBE %LLS oL'684'22L 008y '88Y'L 06'846'08L 1401d $8019
%E'1S LO'GZZ'EEE'-  00'ZZ'GIE'S  86°009'9/S'Y %Y'LS L5'950'Z10'6-  00'6L0'/2Y'L  60°229'6i8'E %118 04691 42L 00'8pL'887'} 06'846'08L awosy [Bjo]
%E'LS LO'OZZ'GEC  QULZB'GLE'S  BE008'9.SY  %bPIS 16'950'219'e-  00'69°L2F'L  B0EZIGIEE  %LIS oL'e9L'LTL 00'gbL'a8y't 06'846'092 ANNIASY 000€ 18101
%EES 0000051~ 0000008 00°000'62 000 %EEB 00'000'64- 00°000'06 00°000'sL pund Jusuusyeg joefold BUNYIRD - §E0E
%0°004 LLE0v 000 LLEOY LLEOY 000 QLIOBU] OSIW « 0Z0E
%005 00°'vSy'688" 000E6'84L' 00'957'688 %008 00°p9b'688° 00'0E6'824') 00'96¥'688 000 g5 J0 A19-dd Bujduing AsuaBlows - Z10¢
%Z'ES 00'e8g'esy'L - 00°000'002'E 00°24E'10L" %CES 00'E89'g6Y'l - 00°000'002°S 00°2ME' 104" 00’0 uBOYdo Bujdiung AauoBiewsy - tLoE
%0'00L 8e'19 - 000 8E'19 8€'19 000 awoau} JsauaY; - olog
[72: 301 2yzes'ort- 00°£80'651 85'¥Z6'8 000 %8t 2Y'Z96'0rL- 00288654 85°yZ6'84 pun jemouey - 1008
%G'26 2y LES'S QOPEV'ELL 85'968'v0L 000 %528 TYIEs's 00vEr'ElL 95°968'401 19Y UBLEM - 800
%00 00°0 000 00'0 %00 000 000 000 00°0 pun; aasy AsuaBupuod ylnoug - 200¢
%0'0§ 9ZYY0'I8L' - 00'9L§'EL8"E viEs'98L't %005 00'6LEVET'L-  006PL'8YP'T 00vIEVELL %008 92'699'796- 00°L28'veL'L vL'451'298 {swawssessy AinD) 1ebpng W20 + 100E
INNIAZY 0008
SUIOaLY
wbpng o % leBpngler0 $ 1wipng gruer-pp, e _3eBpngjoy,  jeBpngiesp$ 1e8png gLuer-ppint _3eBpngjos,  jefpngieans 1e6png Sl bep -y, ng

WL0L suopwiedo sapoysiy

S[8EE [RNI00Y

Q181720

S10z unp - pioz Aine senjoy s 3eBpng

sainjipusdXz] pue sanuaAay Jo Juswslels
Zquiod ) Wd 104



2z oBed

%808 oE'068'E" 00'006' ¥9'609't 000 %8'0E SE'068'E" 00'008'Y $9'605'L sofiddng soyo / sBeisod - 0LyS
%9 £5'999'8- 00'809'6Z WLyl 00'0 %b'28 £6'908'8 00°809'e2 vyl JUR}SISEY SARRNSIUIWIPY - 60VS
%Z8S ZL6€8°9L" ooose'or 88°0LY'EZ 000 %2'85 FAN::y 1 00'082'0F 88°0LYET soBizuBly PARBNSIUIWIDY - 80V9
%6'YS 0508241 00°000'52 05'61L'EL 000 %6V 06°082'41 00°000°5Z 05'6LL'EL ad - (8B - L0vS
%29 £0'620°t- 00'6LL'2 16'689'L 000 %2'29 £0'620't- 00'6LL'e 26°688'L auoN AuRdilog - §OVS
%9'09 $9'L88'V2- 00°000'e9 982948 000 %9'08 Y9 LE8'VT" 00°000'€9 o£'29L'8E Amps o - 3095 -2 T
%6'19 868'cLL'l 0050102 20'1£9'21 000 %8'19 86°€LL'L- 00'604'0Z 20°168'2L Aigjainag UpY « popS % 1))
%Y'BY $8'998's- 000E9°LL SL'E9L'S 000 %9'6y 68'998'G- 00°0£9'4 L §4'e9L's 8al4 Auwduiod - covS o
%P S |z pze'Ll~ 00°Z00'8E ZLL20'02 [els1s b vs qZyZe'LL- 00'200'¢E zLrlLg'oe SYI4IBD - 20PS m [
%Y'ES 18'952'%2- 00'9LEZS £1°650'82 c0'0 %OES 29'952'52- 00'9LE'ZS £1'650°8¢ ‘duson IOHIOM 8 WilRoH - Lovs qy L
SBIMFHSH - NINGY 2 TVH3INTO - 00pe~
%L'68 pheze'z0P 00'EY6'805 95'719'906 %L'85 PP8ZE'Z00 00'Ev8'806 99°v19'008 000 SALLVHLSININGY 2 TVEENID - 6661 jeioL
%50F 08965~ 00°000°4 oz'sor %5'0F 08'b6S- 00°000'4 0Z'50p 000 UORTULIOMN JjqNd - LEES
%O'oF LE080'E- 0070002 69616 %0'9p LE'080" - 000002 69616 000 S0IURISIUOD/BARLL UILIPY - OECE
%E'S LEbES' L 00°000'2 62504 %E'S LLYB8 L 00°000'2 82'504 000 suopdussqngBujuies) dwg - gzes
%S'6Y FE'EE0'0L- 0000002 99'906'6 %G6Y PEEE0'0L- 00°000'0Z 99'806°6 000 juByinsuog Jendwod - gLeg
%681 81'vye'e- 00'000' 29554 %6'8} alyyee- 00000y 28654 000 $1888Y POX[ UIWDY - 9165
%5'96 00'EvZ 00'000'L 602829 %586 00'eve- 00'000'2 00°482'9 000 seng diusIoqway - GLES
%YL ST OSY'Z- 002628 549822 %YL SZ05p'2 [ AN SL98Z'L 000 SORIBA - PLES
%a'YS STELS'E 00'666'L SL18E'Y %8'YS STELY'E- 00'966'L SLi8EY 000 SUOHBIUNUILOY - ELES
%E'ZH LZL0 Q0'062°01 1ZaLe %ETY LTI 0006404 2L 000 sesuedx3 UpupY osIW - ZLES
%0'Zh 28619 00'168'6 88120 %0'2h 29'619'G- 00'169'6 8E'120' 000 sesuoydinby soR0 - LISY
%682 zLep'e 00'00L'8 82'1£9'2 %6'8Z zLeev's 00°004'6 82'1€0'2 000 dxz eayj0/ebesod - 01ES
%0'29 £9°804'0L~ 00'55€'2p 189v2'92 %029 £9'804'01- 00'558'2 1£9v2'92 000 UBDIUYOD L SRUNOSEY JBIM - LOES
%b'29 66°98p'g1~ 00bra'ey L Le'e %¥'Z8 66'095'91~ QOPPB'EY \O'LIE' 12 000 JURISISSY CARRISIURLPY - 90E8
%00 00°005'28- 0000528 000 %00 00°008'28- 00'006'2€ 00'0 000 1 JURISISSY UIWIPY « £08S
%6'19 8E'2EF V)~ 00'668°2 19 45r'e2 %6'1L9 86'LEY'VL- 00'668'LE 19'5Y'CZ 000 Ainesoeg sAlRNSUILILDY - Y0OCS
%2'8G 98'2.2'1E" 000822 vLLLY'EY %Z'8G 88'2L2'1e" 00'0SL'vL vLLLpeY 00’0 2aBBURl SARRNSIUILPY - LOES
%908 0042 ey 00000211 00'€48°02 %909 00221 '9p 00°000'L}H 00'8L8'0L 000 fusieg 1efeuey - 00E§
%Z'Z8 SZ'L16'L o0'Z80's SLOVL'E %229 [T ARY- 00'250'S SLOPL'E 000 uipY JHYOW Ausdwo) - 6928
%G6Y ZE'688°01- 00°L65'4Z 89°1LLL0L %96y zE'688°0L 00'465'12 8911401 00'0 URUPY YOI Aurdwod . 0929
%Y'PS £5°224'28- 00PL5'0L Ly L0v'eE %b'vs £5'2LL e 00'viS'0L prgtsa: 000 Su3d - 0628
%L'98 8y 0ES'S8" 00'859'46L H-Pr AN AN %.'98 8y°0£5'58~ 00°'859'26L 222V i 000 dwon SI0MIOM '8 LROH - L0ZS
%9'y6 $2'1282- 00'50L'2Y 9L'€e8e'0F %8'v6 yZ12ee- 00’5022y oL'e8e'0y 000 saurnsy] Aiiiger - 0028
%8'9 71289y 00°000's og'lee %R'S #1298y 000006 o8'4ee 00'0 xef juswhojdwony - 0519
%Z'EL 00°608's" 0000L'L2 00'188'GL %HTEL 00'608'S- 00'002'12 00'168'5L 000 HPNY - {-LOLS
%G'Gp 89°I¥5'es" 00°000'004 esr'oY %G9y 85 LbS'ES- 00000004 Zyasy'sy 000 wBe . 00is
%L62 242028 00000t 98'26L'e %26 Zy 1026 00'000'€L 88'z6L'e 000 se94 J0J02J1Q « 000§ IRIOL
%8'1e 09'508'4- 00'000'4 4 OFvev'e %E'1E 09'50§'L- 00'000't} oy'reb'e 000 1030 - 5604 JOJI8AIQ - 0005
%6'Pi 26104 00°000'2 8y'8862 %6°b1 26104 00'000'2 8F'862 000 afivojiy 1032041q - L0083
seo4 Jopeld - 000§
IALLVHLSININGY 2 TVHINSO - 686V
%0 Ze'gee’}- 00°005'2 gLLoL’t 000 %0'vh 298681~ 00005'Z 8110V SRAHSID - SHSNIAX3 YIHLO + 005 0101
%0'bP 29868t~ 000082 817104t 000 %0y 28'868"~ 00°008'2 8L'LoLY suuolun - Z20sY
SIIYIHGIH - SISNIIXT HIHLO - 005¥
%L'8p 95've9'e- 00°000°L pyrGee'e 000 %b'8y 9%'veg'e- 00°000'2 ¥y'59E'e “PIAHSH - SHddNSISTVINILYI - 00EY I930L
%18y 95vES'E- 00°000'L PPGoE'e 000 %i'ap 95'vE9'e- 00°000'L #H'598'e Snoaurlaosly - 06EY
. SIAYHHS - SITHANSISIVINILYN - 00EY
%T'YL 8E000'8 00'000°1€ 29'666'22 000 %L 8£'000°8- 000004 29°666'2C SHNTHSI - HOBYT LOVHLINOD - 0Z2¥ 12101
L3474 96480'5" 00°000'82 [a ¥AZAA 000 %PBL 96°L84'G- 06'000'8Z [opAza~4 esurusuB sjoefoid ustd - ZZZY
%e'Se e 00°000'E 86261 00'0 %E'GT [AgAZA S €0000'e 857462 SOA{RA '} SIBI0) - 122V
SAUFHSI - HOEVT LOVHINOS - 022Y
%992 PLE50'2E 00°005°0§ og'ebp'El 000 %9'9T PLES0'LE 00°005'05 oB9PPEL SINMIHSIL - dINDT 2 STIOHIA - 00ZY 1RI0L
%8y 94088 000052 yB'6LE 000 %8y 94°08€'2- 00'005'2 peeLL SNOOURIBASIN - 062V
%0'0 00°000'0F 00°000'0y~ 000 00’0 %0'0 00'000'0F 00°000°0F~ 00'0 $1L0Z Ad SPUNZ O/ S198SY PaXId - 1-082P
%9'6 $2B9L' LT 00°000'64 SLOEZ'L 00'0 %8'6 STE8L'te 00°000'sL §L0e2'L pydeg paxid - 08ZY
%60k SLE08'Y 00°000'eH 129808 000 %6'9p £LE068'S 00°000'sh 129609 ey dinb3/eilyen - 0420
SAUIHSIS - AINDA 2 STOIHIA - 002V
%1 VS Z0°Z5L'6YT- 0OOva'eys 86'/88'€6Z 000 %1'PS 20°TGL'BYT- 00'0p9'erS 06°£80'€62 SHIHSI - HOBYT - 00LY [BI0L
%2'85 20084’ 00'LE2'S 86'90°'E 000 %Z'8G 0981’ 00'Lez's 85'vP0'e o1ujpe 00 O - £9LY
1oBpng Joa gLuer-pi, ¢ _3eBpngjoy  jelpng Jea0 ¢ efpng gL uur - py, Inc Bpng jo % _ 3e8png Jeap § 1e8png giuer-yy of
suopriedQ Sopaysiy
gLoz unp - pLozZ Aine - siemjoy "sa Jebpng sisug prissy
sainypuadXy pue senusAsy jo juswisiels gH8LZo
Wd boit

2aqu0d



¢ ofied

%0°00L BLIVE'BLS- 000 sLve'ele: %0'004 ZL888'84L 000 ZL 988840 %0°'001 £e'v1s'00L 000 £6'v15°004

%ERS zZvas'stl'e-  00UZ8'SIE'8  8LepE'sel'S %i'L9 61°002'268'2- 00629424, LE'BLP'GES'Y  %pbY £0've9' 28 00°8kL'885'4 26'69%'089

%0°004 £4422'9L 000 eL22T'et £L222'91 00’0

%9'82 6£°5pL'96" 00'000'5EL 19458'88 00'0 %'z 6E'SF1'96~ 00°000'5EL 19'v58'8E
%0'0 00°000'08" 60°000'08 [elel] 000 %00 00°000'08~ 00°000°0¢ oo
%1'e8 P50 - 00'000'08 85°926'81 000 %L'E9 ZYGLO'LL- 00°000'0¢ 85'v26'8L
%0'0 00°000°0E" 00°000°08 000 000 %0°0 00°000°08- 00°000°08 00°0
%G Ly 98'Z0P'eT- 00'000'0F vi'485'0} 000 %Sy 98'20¥'ee- 00°000°0Y v1'.685'91
%2'98 L1299's- 00'000's egzee's 000 %L°99 142091~ 00'000's 68'2EL'e

%8'8} 6L29v' 16¢- 00°000'21€ L2L66'65 000 %8'8l 6L20p'162- 00'000°24E 12 2€8'65
%00 00'000's" 00'000'G 000 000 %0°0 00'000'5- 00°000's 000
%6'¥Z 2L°050'64" 00000004 82'6Y8've 000 %6'vZ 2L050'64- 00°000°004 89T'6P8'Ye
%00 00°000°'5- 00°000's 000 000 %00 00'000's- 00'000'S 000
%P2 05'201°85" 00°000'4L 0546881 000 %1've 05'Z9p'85- 00°000'2L 0528581
%8y 16'129'6" 0000001 &p'8Ly ‘ V)] %8'y 15'128'6- 00°000°04 8v'8LY
%00 00°000°0L~ 00'000'0} 000 000 %00 00'000°04- 00°000'04 000
%8'28 LLveey- 0000004 €268 000 %828 LTy 00°000°04 €2'6LL'8
%8'9 62'S02'E6" 00000004 L9629 000 %8's 62°802'26~ 00°000°001 L2'88L'9

%8'ES 81'L10'046'L-  D0Q00'YSY'S  Z9'9R6'EAY'E  %B'EY 8L'L10°046'L-  00000'VSY'S  Z9'8RE'EBY'E 000
%b'89 0Z'966'08Y'}-  CO000'80LY  08°100'1Z2'€ %y'88 02'866'98¢'L-  00'000'80L'Y  08'L00422'E 000
%0'0 00°000°052- 00000052 00’0 %00 00°000°052" 00°000°052 000 000
%00 00°000°05- 00°000'0E oo'o %00 00°000°08- 00'000°08 000 000
%00 00°000°08" 00'000'08 000 %00 00'000°08- 00°000°08 c0'0 000
%00 00°000'0L~ 00'000'0L 000 %00 0000004~ 00°000°02 000 000
%0'0 00°000'084- 00°000'054 000 %0°0 00°000°0S 4~ 00°000°05L 000 000
%00 o' 000 000 %0°0 00'0 000 000 000
%0°0 000 000 000 %0'0 000 000 000 000
%0'0 00°9v5'9.2 00'8r8'942- 000 %0'0 00°9¥5°842 00'8¥5'942- 000 00'0
%9'68 0092666~ 00'9p5'842 00029962 %958 00'926'68- 00'8rs'9L2 00'029'982 000
%b'h 00°258'6" 00'000°04 00ert %YL 00'258'6- 0000004 ooert 000
%Z'904 00228 00'000'04 oo'zze'ol %290+ 00229 00'000°'04 0022804 000
%0'0 00'586°L01 00'G86'204- 000 %0'0 00°586'£01 00686201 000 000
%0'S 96'LL0'5¥2- 00'586'252 y0'e46'2) %0'S 96'110's¥2 00'686'452 YO'eL6'ZH 000
%EBE ieLeze 00000 69TLL %E64 1 4eT'e- 00'000'y 69'2LL 00'0
%0°0 00'000's2 00°000'62- 000 %0'0 0000062 00°000'62- 000 000
%eT LLEPL'SS 00'000'29 82'958'1 %8'T LLEYLSS 00°00048 62'958'1 000

%8'0L 00'par'r 00°000's [slekerec] %6'04 Layd-ad 00°000'S 00°9vs 000

%9'95 £6'982'PLL- 00'805"10¥ riLeiee 000 %995 £6°9EZ'pLL- 00'805°L0Y weee
%00 00700524 00'005°L1 00°0 000 %0'0 00°00G'21- 00°005'2E 000
%029 pE'pLg'E 00°208'22 99ZEL YL 000 %029 ye'vLg'e: 00°208'22 99°ZE} 'L
%L°00} ol'ost 0056512 oL'syL'ie 000 %L°004 o051 00'568'12 oL'shL'LeE
%842 o8l 00'00e'9 00228y 000 %8'LL 00'8LL'- 00'00E'9 00’228y
%218 a8z 00'008'L 61812t 000 %Z'L8 18182 000081 [1%:1*4l
%91y o8°00F'L- 000082 o1'6£0't 000 %9'Ly 08yt 000052 91'6E0'
%ot 62668 007000t 12091 000 %1'0L 62668 00°000'} LL094
%Y'LE opeLL'y 000009 09'188't 000 %b'LE op'eLip 00°000'9 09'188't
%EZ e 000082 0L'96 000 %E'Z 0E'EbY'Z- 00°005'T oL'es
%b'PS e9'e8L'Y- 000050} pe'BLL's 00'0 %b'vS 99'e8L'r- 60'005°04 regLL'S
%O LY (% Al 00°000'% 28'ge9't 000 %0'4p 98’ 00'000'Y 88'8€9'L
%602} 00'909 00'006'2 00'908°€ 000 %80ZH 00'608 000062 00'908°S
%8'VL SEEIE OO'EYT'S S9'ET8'e 000 %e'rL SE'BIE'L 00'ep2's SE'E26'e
%129 S5'EE9'} 00'50E'y pP 1492 000 %128 SE'EEY'L- 00’508y vy'129'2
%LEY 6£'808'e 00°018's 191082 000 %1'ey 6E'B0E'E- 00°018'S 19'1058'2
%02 L8°520'E- 008IC's 812612 000 %02y 19'620'¢" 00'812's 61'261'C

whpngjo o  308pngiea0 § efipng grpuep-py inr _3efpngloy,  lefpngleag g 1s8png sruep-prnr _eBpngioy, Spng Jeag § 18png gt uer -y, Ip
WLOL suopriedQ SopeYSEY

§L0Z unr - pLOZ AMr s1eMoY 'sA1ebBpng

sainjipuadxy pue SanNUaAaY Jo Jusuislels

ZGwos

WO M,
ancauxm _n% %u

d4d3-HENIIND LSTUTLINL - hoohm [
ANSWIONVHNI LVLIEVH - 0028 .Eo.mmw o-

8 Buissoun doeasn ok - §leg

 Buissoi) yse4D ©OIND - Ples

¢ Bujssou seeud vlonD - g1E8

{qge) o Bussoas sesuD wlomy - ZLes

poddng sjaefoid Amnquyl - €089
ANSWIONVHNE LYLIEVH - 00£9

SILINLOV SARIIHSI - 0028 1vI0L

O5() [2POW BIBMIBAR] MAS - 1128
wiiBoid uopeloysoy ol ¥eO - 1029
Bugpung wae ], ysid Aunod py, - 9029
wesBord eBned wesns SHSN - 5029

uoddng [eojuyos | ABOIIPAH YAS - Y0ZO
voddng [EojuYos] SIURID « £029
Bujddey pue SI9 - 2028
uopejuweidw) dWd - 1029

SHLLIALLOY SHINTIHSI - 0028

SL03roYd IVIDIdS + 0008 (830l

joafoid oug Buldumyg Aouablawg . 0219
SOPING 7 SILOIS JoMOL !t « 8119
190{0ig Bugard pleleys « L1149
dinysafold dn uesio YONG-A - 9119
aInjanag JUBA Jiy uedo « 2119
SAJZA JOLUOD MOl 101 dN - 8018
PLOT Ad spUng /O uBld JU0D IQ - 178018
Buuueyd AouaBupuog yBnoig - gote
102 Ad sPund O/ quuey sl dN - §-L019
dqryoy JojeAnly [BLOd UMON - L0198
Eﬂ‘_mc..& ucchWn:uE MOY - 5019
Buidday pus S - 2609
YLOZ Ad spund OO qryeY 118 D08 - L~ 9808
uogelliqeiey aunjonng 008 - 9609
Buipiing 03140 GWOD - 0809
P10Z Ad spund OfO YOVOS « 1-2808
vavos - 2508
S103rOkd WiOIdS - 0008
ue|d 16y Jojem Boy pejebaiy) - 0158
SIHUIHSIS - NINOY 2 TVAANIO « 0005 (8101
Iumsiesy WWpY - L5YS
UBJOJULDB ], SOINOSON JOIUM + O§PT
suj Ayadosd g 9B - CYPS
Y - Lbbe
uogsluoi dliand « LEVS
jeARt), - OEPS
abeojiy J0j0020 - L2V5
8804 J0J26(( - 8TVE
uopdposqnguopeanpy sokoidusy - §Zvs
wnsuog Jondwios - give
$108SY poXid URLUPY - 9Lp8
genq diustoquion - g1¥g
SePURN - ive
SUOREOUNUWIOD - £L¥9
asusdx3y UIPY oSl < 2LYY
seseat /uowdinby 82140 - LIVS

siseg jeniooy
384120
Wd 10t}



LAIF Regular Monthly Statement

Local Ageney Investment Fund
P.0. Box 942809

Sacramento, CA 94209-0001
(916) 653-3001

CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
GENERAL MANAGER

3301 LAUREL CANYON ROAD
SANTA BARBARA, CA 93105-2017

Effective Transaction Tran Confirm

https://laifms.treasurer.ca.gov/RegularStatement.aspx

www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-~
laiflaifasp

February 02,

2015

PMIA Average Monthly Yields

Tran Type Definitions January 2015 Statemer

Date Date  Type Number Authorized Caller Amount
17152015  1/14/2015 QRD 1455383 SYSTEM 2.50
Account Summary
Total Deposit: 2.50 Beginning Balance: . 3,895.46
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 3,897.96

MEMO TO: Board of Directors

Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
FROM: Randall Ward, Secretary
SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY
~~

The above statement of investment activity for the month OW 2015, complies with legal

7
Secretary

requirgments f Zinvestment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
coWijmam of all LAIF investments of this agency for the period indicated.
[ L 7

ltem #3b
Page 6



@HE %m M Q(mm DBerbura

- 008 00001 00 PAGE: 1
12 East Figueroa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 ACCOUNT: XXXXXXXXXXX1530 01/30/2015
Tel: 805. 730.7860 WWW.BANKOFSANTABARBARA.COM DOCUMENTS: 0

} CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

RENEWAL FUND ACCOUNT 30
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD 0
SANTA BARBARA CA 93105 0

Protecting Your Identity The Bank of Santa Barbara will never ask for
personal information (such as your account number,social security number,
password, or PIN) in an email or send you any email with a 1link to a
website that asks for any such information. For additional information on
how to protect yourself from Fraud wvisit the bank s website
www.bankofsantabarbara.com or contact the bank at 805.730.7860

BASIC BUSINESS CHECKING ACCOUNT XXXXXXXXXXX1530

LAST STATEMENT 12/31/14 151,178.03
MINIMUM BALANCE 151,178.03 CREDITS .00
AVG AVAILABLE BALANCE 151,178.03 DEBITS .00
AVERAGE BALANCE 151,178.03 THIS STATEMENT 01/30/15 151,178.03

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Randall Ward, Secretary
SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY
The above statement of investment activity for the month o , 2015, complies with legal

requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Bank of Santa Barbara investments of this agency for the period

ltem #3b
Page 7



s THE BANK of @lante DBearbara

- 008 00001 0O PAGE: 1
12 East Figueroa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 ACCOUNT: XXXXXXXX¥XXX1543 01/30/2015
Tel: 805. 730.7860 WWW.BANKOFSANTABARBARA.COM DOCUMENTS : 0

} CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

WARREN ACT TRUST FUND ACCOUNT 30
3301 LAUREL CANYON RD 0
SANTA BARBARA CA 93105 ' 0

Protecting Your Identity The Bank of Santa Barbara will never ask for
personal information (such as your account number,social security number,
password, or PIN) in an email or send you any email with a link to a
website that asks for any such information. For additional information on
how to protect yourself from Fraud visit the bank s website
www.bankofsantabarbara.com or contact the bank at 805.730.7860

BASIC BUSINESS CHECKING ACCOUNT XXXXXXXXXXX1543

LAST STATEMENT 12/31/14 496,379.94
MINIMUM BALANCE 496,379.94 1 CREDITS 121,088.00
AVG AVAILABLE BALANCE 536,742.60 DEBITS .00
AVERAGE BALANCE 536,742.60 THIS STATEMENT 01/30/15 617,467.94
~~~~~~~~~~ DEPOSITS — — = = — = = = — =
REF #..... DATE...... AMOUNT REF #..... DATE...... AMOUNT REF #.....DATE......RAMOUNT

01/21 121,088.00

MEMO TO: Board of Directors
Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board

FROM: Randall Ward, Secretary
SUBJECT: COMB INVESTMENT POLICY
The above statement of investment activity for the month of 2015, complies with legal

requirements for investment policy of government agencies, AB 1073. I hereby certify that it constitutes a
complete and accurate summary of all Bank of Santa Barbara investments of this agency for the period

T .

Selcr&ary

ltem #3b
Page 8



11:50 AM
02104115
Accrual Basis

comb2

Payment of Claims
As of January 31, 2015

Date Num Name Memo Amount
1050 - GENERAL FUND
01/07/2015 23316 Acorn Landscape Management Co. Scheduled mtce-Lauro yard -280.77
01/07/2015 23317 ACWA-Joint Powers Insurance Authority  Workers Comp Program 10/1-12/31/14 -8,752.00
01/07/2015 23318 Big Brand Tire Company Tires/balancing-F350 (Ops Div) -372.70
01/07/2015 23319 Business Card Business lunches/Webhost/fish trap mat/supp-channeling ~ -1,722.60
conduits (Fish Div)
01/07/2015 23320 Channel City Lumber Tree stakes (Fish Div) -294.63
01/07/2015 23321 City of Santa-Barbara Trash/Recycle-Dec 2014 -216.17
01/07/2016 23322 Crop Production Services, Inc Rodent bait-reservoirs (Ops Div)/Pesticide for hyacinth -168.75
abatement (Fish Div)
01/07/2016 23323 Culligan Water Monthly RO system -24.95
01/07/2015 23324 Dale Francisco Dec mig fees -132.64
01/07/2015 23325 David Baum Refund COBRA Premiums Nov/Dec 2014; Jan/Feb 2015 -2,774.22
01/07/2015 23326 Draganchuk Alarm Systems Alarm monitoring 1/1-3/31/15 -82.50
01/07/2015 23327 ECHO Communications Monthly answering service -62.00
01/07/2015 23328 Famcon Pipe & Supply Spools/nuts/bolts/air vac can-AVAR's (Ops Div) -2,106.00
01/07/2015 23329 Farm Supply Company Tree stakes (Fish Div} -553.64
01/07/2015 23330 Federal Express Mailing -38.75
01/07/2015 23331 GE Capital Copier least agmt -489.24
01/07/2015 23332 Harrison Hardware Paint/polesffencing/ties/mulch/gopher baskets (Fish Div) -2,208.36
01/07/2015 23333 Home Depot Credit Services Expanding foam for parts/ichainsaw chains (Ops Div) ~79.00
01/07/2016 23334 Hydrex Pest Control Co. Pest service-Lauro yard -108.00
01/07/2015 23335 Kenneth A. Knight, Consulting Consulting Arborist-Oak Tree program-Dec (Fish Div) -3,100.00
01/07/2015 23336 Lauren W. Hanson Dec mtg fees -133.60
01/07/2015 23337 MarBorg Industries Portable toilets-monthly service -328.37
01/07/2015 23338 Milpas Rental Boom lift {(Ops Div) -379.55
01/07/2015 23339 Mission Roofing Main mobile unit roof repair -335.00
01/07/2016 23340 Musick, Peeler & Garrett LLP General Counsel-Nov -14,306.60
01/07/2015 23341 Northwest Hydraulic Consultants Project reporting/tech support-thru Nov (Fish Div) -463.80
01/07/2016 23342 Paychex, Inc. 12/5, 12/18, 12/22 payrolisftaxes/deliveries -416.58
01/07/2015 23343 PG&E North Portal/Tecolote tunnel electrical service -349.70
01/07/2015 23344 Pitney Bowes Global Financial Services LL Postage meter quarterly leasing Jan-Apr 2015 -443.89
01/07/2015 23345 Praxair Distribution, inc Cylinder rental (acetylene for welder) -66.38
01/07/2015 23346 Prudential Overall Supply Mats/scrapers-Lauro yard-Dec -163.53
01/07/2015 23347 Rauch Communication Consuitants, Inc Website mtce -170.00
01/07/2015 23348 SB Home Improvement Center Concrete mix-AVAR's/conduit & structure mtce (Ops Div) -281.19
pvcitowels-oak tree program (Fish Div)
01/07/2015 23348 Southern California Edison Main office/outlying stations -1,235.63
01/07/2015 23350 Staples Contract and Commercial, Inc. Office supplies -250.08
01/07/2015 23351 Sun Coast Rentals Scissor lift work platform (Ops Div) -164.50
01/07/2015 23352 The Gas Company Main office -16.36
01/07/2015 23353 The Wharf Shirts/pants/rain coats-Ops/Fisheries/GM -2,403.22
01/07/20156 23354 Tri-County Locksmiths, Inc Duplicate keys -23.65
01/07/2016 23355 Underground Service Alert of So. Calif. 44 Ticket charges -66.00
01/07/2015 23356 Verizon California Main office -336.29
01/07/2015 23357 Western Welding Safely glasses/platform fabrication-Sheffield control -52.22
stations (Ops Div)
01/07/2015 23358 Wright Express Fleet Services Fleet fuel -1,859.02
01/07/2015 23359 ClO Solutions, LP Maintain IT-Jan services -1,888.74
01/07/12015 23360 Coastal Copy, LP Copier mtce agmt -172.04
01/07/2015 23361 Crop Production Services, Inc Glasses/face shieldfhead gear (PPE) (Ops Div) -65.36
01/12/2015 23362 AT&T Dec charges -434.57
01/12/2015 23363 Cox Communications Business internet-Jan -195.00
01/12/2015 23364 Employee Relations, Inc.

Background/verification-new employee's (TC/DS)”em #3c

-286.45

Page 1 Page1of2



11:50 AM comb2

02004115 Payment of Claims
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2015

Date Num Name Memo Amount
01/12/2015 23365 J&C Services Office cleaning services Nov/Dec services -600.00
01/12/2015 23366 SWRCB-DWOCP Water Treatment Renewal T1 (SK) -56.00
01/12/2015 23367 Southern California Edison Outlying stations -52.72
01/12/2015 23368 Verizon Wireless Cellular/modems/USB's (Ops & Fish Div) -639.31
01/15/2015 23369 A.T.Z. Monogramming COMB logo for uniforms -540.44
01/15/2015 23370 Association of Ca Water Agencies/JPIA  Feb Health Benefits coverage -28,963.91
01/15/2015 23371 CIO Solutions, LP ShoreTel Annual Support agmt/Microsoft Office 2013 -1,467.31
01/15/2015 23372 County of Santa--Barbara Green waste (Ops Div) -123.80
01/15/2015 23373 Cushman Contracting Corp. Emerg Pumping System: Pay Req#8-Phase Il -300,639.08
01/15/2015 23374 Megan Emami Reimb-Water Treatment class/D1 Renewal -120.00
01/15/2015 23375 RMC Water and Environment Prop 84, Grant App support -4,770.50
01/15/2015 23376 Ruth Snodgrass Reimb-posters for news conference -108.88
01/18/2015 23377 Santa Barbara Concrete Cutting Below grade vault wall core hole (4400 Hwy 192) -185.00
01/15/2015 23378 Scott Engblom Reimb-Oak tree mat/supp; netting for trapping -756.47
01/15/2015 23379 Southern California Edison Foothill Rd -27.19
01/15/2015 23380 Verizon California Main office/outlying stations -874.61
01/15/2015 23381 Verizon Wireless ., Modem's -152.12
01/15/2015 23382 PG&E Electricity charges-EPFP Stmt 12/18/14 -787.68
01/16/2015 23383 County of Santa—Barbara Muich-oak trees (Fish Div) -165.50
01/20/2015 23384 The Bank of Santa Barbara Loan interest pymt #6-Jan -4,045.06

Total 1050 - GENERAL FUND -395,827.93
TOTAL -395,827.93
ltem #3c¢

Page 2 Page 20f 2



11:50 AM
02104/15

Jan 15

Jan 15

comb2
Payment of Claims-Renewal Fund
Accrual Basis January 2015
Date Num Name Memo Amount
01/22/2015 3018 Cachuma Oper & Maint Board Nov-Dec Oak Tree program exp's (bal from WATF) -3,018.06
-3,018.05

item #3¢ Page 1
Page 3



11:50 AM

02/04/15
Accrual Basis

Date Num

comb2

Payment of Claims-Warren Act Trust Fund
January 2015

Jan 15

Jan 15

Name Memo Amount
01/22/2015 5010 Cachuma Oper & Maint Board Nov-Dec Oak Tree program exp's (bal from RF) -8,5637.42
-8,537.42

ltem #3c Page
Page 4



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date:

February 23, 2015

Submitted by:

Tim Robinson and Scott
Volan

Approved by:

Randy Ward

SUBJECT:

Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Restoration Program

HIGHLIGHTS:

e 409 oak trees planted as of 2/17/15 for Year 7 trees, goal 1000.
o CCC starting on 2/23/15 for 2 weeks to assist in the Year 7 planting effort.

SUMMARY:

This memorandum on the Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Restoration Program reflects maintenance completed
since the beginning of this Fiscal Year (7/1/14 — 2/18/15, Table 1). Labor and expenses for the entire fiscal
year (July 2014 - June 2015) as well as water usage will be tracked separately but not reported as
recommended by the COMB Board Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Committee. COMB staff continues to rely on
the Fisheries Division seasonal employees to conduct the majority of oak tree work in the field. The annual
oak tree inventory began in November and all associated fieldwork relating to this task has been completed.
The results of the annual oak tree inventory will be presented to the Lake Cachuma Oak Tree Committee at
the next meeting.

Table 1: Cachuma Oak Tree Program completed tasks since 7/1/14.

July 2014 * August* Sept2014** 0Oct2014 Nov 2014%** Dec 2014*** Jan 2015*%* Feb 2015***
Year 7 Oaks . : New Trees New Trees New Trees
{2014-2015) Gopher Baskets Gopher Baskets  Gopher Baskets
Fertilizer/Compost - Fertilizer/Compost . Fertilizer/Compost
Deer Cages Deer Cages Deer Cages
: Mulched/lIrrigated - Mulched/Irrigated  Mulched/Irrigated
Year & Oaks irrigated
{2010-2011) Hand weeded
Cage maint.
Year 5 Oaks : irrigated Cage maint.
{2009-2010)
Year 4 Oaks: Cage maint. Irrigated
{2008-2009)
Year 3 Oaks . Cage maint. lrrigated
{2007-2008)
Year 2 Oaks . lrrigated
{2006-2007) Hand weeded
Cage maint.
Year 1 Oaks . lrrigated
(2005-2006) Hand weeded
Cage maint.

*Lakeshore inventory began in July and continued into August
**Sept and Oct watering at Year 1 and Year 2 included trees under 3' in height and all vaIIey oaks

***November through February work included annual oak tree inventory

ltem #3d

Page 1




The planting of new oak trees (Year 7) began in December and will continue through early March, weather
permitting. Trees are planted at a ratio of 90% Coast Live Oaks and 10% Valley Oaks. The planting
procedure includes marking out a minimum distance of 20 feet between trees, excavating each hole with a
backhoe, inserting a gopher cage, mixing compost and a bit of fertilizer with the soil that is backfilled into the
hole, and planting the new tree. Once this process is completed, tree stakes and hog wire deer protection
fencing is placed around each tree. Then the area is mulched and irrigated as needed. New trees are being
planted at Storke Flat and near Bradbury Dam. Oak trees are being provided by Manzanita Nursery in
Solvang. As of end of the day on Tuesday prior to the Board meeting, 409 new oak trees have been planted
and approximately 190 additional holes have been prepared for new plantings with more to come through the
week (See Exhibits A through C). The California Conservation Corps will be assisting with the planting effort
starting on 2/23/15 for two weeks.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Tracked but not included.

LEGAL CONCURRENCE: N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS: N/A

RECOMMENDATION: For Board information only.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

Exhibit A: Lake Cachuma Oak Tree etoraion Program at trke Fat hoing a) COM saoal staff

planting oak trees, b) overview of new plantings, c) new plantings with grow tubes, and d) another view of
new plantings.

ltem #3d

Page 2




New Planting Areas At Storke Flat - Lake Cachuma

New trees planted
Holes dug, next tree planting location

= New trees planted
= Holes dug, next tree planting location

Exhibit C: Aerial view of desigted planting Iocatis at Brdbury Dam, Lake Cachuma.

ltem #3d

Page 3




CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 23, 2015

TO: Randy Ward, General Manager

FROM: Tim Robinson, Fisheries Division Manager
RE: MONTHLY FISHERIES DIVISION REPORT

HIGHLIGHTS:

Received a CDFW-FRGP Grant for the Quiota Creek Crossing 0 project for the requested
amount of $671,635 with a landowner construction match of $50,000; tentative construction
set for the fall of 2015.

Received a CDFW-FRGP Grant for Quiota Creek Crossing 3 for the requested amount of
$705,205 with a COMB construction match of $50,000; tentative construction set for the fall
of 2015.

Did not receive a CDFW-FRGP Grant for the Quiota Creek Crossing 4; staff we be
resubmitting a grant for the 2015 CDFW-FRGP Grant competition by the end of March.
Starting the CalTrans grant proposal process for Quiota Creek Crossing 8.

Hilton Creek Emergency Backup System still needs installation of the electrical controllers
and complete testing of the system; completion date uncertain.

In compliance with the 2000 Cachuma Project Biological Opinion ((NMFS, 2000) and as described
in the 2004 Lower Santa Ynez River Fish Management Plan (SYRTAC, 2000) and the Monitoring
Program in the 2000 Revised Biological Assessment (BA), the Cachuma Project Biology Staff
(CPBS) conducts routine monitoring of steelhead/rainbow trout and their habitat on the Lower
Santa Ynez River (LSYR) below Bradbury Dam. The following is a list of activities carried out by
CPBS since the last COMB Board meeting that has been broken out by categories.

LSYR Steelhead Monitoring Elements:

Lake Profiles: Lake Cachuma water quality measurements (temperature, dissolved oxygen
concentration and total dissolved solids) at one meter intervals from the surface to the bottom
of the lake (Lake Profile) are taken once a month normally from April through December at
the Hilton Creek Watering System (HCWS) intake barge. This is considered to be at or near
the deepest point in the lake and allows for monitoring of lake stratification, water quality
conditions at the intake level for the HCWS and lake-turnover. Due to the drought and need

to carefully monitor Lake Cachuma, lake profiles will be taken monthly throughout the year for
the unforeseeable future.

Migrant Trapping: This monitoring effort normally begins in January and continues through
May depending on stream flow rates. Due to an excessively dry year and limitations in the
number of juvenile and adult take as stipulated in the Cachuma Project BO, a reduced
trapping program will begin shortly after our next storm event with runoff which hopefully will
be soon. The 2015 Trapping Plan was approved by Reclamation and submitted to NMFS this
month. CPBS will carefully monitor take numbers throughout the season to assure take limits

ltem #3e
Page 1



will not be exceeded. Results of the trapping program are presented in the Annual Monitoring
Report.

Redd Surveys: Redd surveys are conducted every two weeks from mid-January through
May. Surveys were initiated in January within the LSYR mainstem in the Highway 154,
Refugio, and Alisal reaches where access was permitted, and certain sections of Hilton,
Quiota, and Salsipuedes/El Jaro creeks. The number of redds is reported in the Annual
Monitoring Plan.

Cachuma Lake Oak Tree Restoration Program: COMB staff, with guidance from the hired
professional arborist, continues to implement the Program and has successfully conducted all
management actions as required. An update of the project is provided in a separate Board
memo including the new trees (Year 7) that are currently being planted.

Tributary Project Updates:
Quiota Creek Crossing 0: Results from the 2014 CDFW-FRGP Grant competition came out
on 3/12/15. COMB submitted a grant proposal and the project was awarded a grant for the
requested amount of $671,635 with a landowner construction match of $50,000. We can now
start the permit process and submit the designs for NMFS/CDFW and SB County review and
approval. The objective is to build the project in the fall of 2015. The project will be discussed
at the next Fisheries Committee meeting.

Quiota Creek Crossing 3: COMB submitted a 2014 CDFW-FRGP Grant proposal. This
project was awarded a grant for the requested amount of $705,205 with a COMB construction
match of $50,000 that was approved during the February 2014 COMB Board meeting.
Designs are being submitted to NMFS/CDFW and SB County for review by 2/27/15. Permits
applications are under way. The objective is to build the project in the fall of 2015. The project
will be discussed at the next Fisheries Committee meeting.

Quiota Creek Crossing 4: COMB submitted a 2014 CDFW-FRGP Forest and Drought Grant
proposal. Unfortunately, this project was not funded. We are working on addressing all
comments received from the grant reviewers that will be incorporated in a 2015 CDFW-FRGP
Grant proposal that is due on 3/30/15. The project will be discussed at the next Fisheries
Committee meeting. 2015 Grant awards will be announced in February, 2016.

Quiota Creek Crossing 8: In collaboration with SB County and a hired consultant, we have
started the CalTrans grant proposal process which is a lengthy process with many steps.
Grants are reviewed upon submittal hence the process will be slow at first and then the results
should be back in a shorter period of time. The project will be discussed at the next Fisheries
Committee meeting.

Salsipuedes Creek — Jalama Road Fish Ladder: NMFS and CDFW are reviewing COMB
submitted designs to repair the fish ladder and weirs. Once the designs have been solidified,
budget proposals will be drafted and requests for funding will be submitted. Construction of
this project is dependent on design approval and receiving funding.

El Jaro Creek — Cross Creek Ranch Fish Passage Facility: There has been no action on
the suggested repairs to this project.

Hilton Creek Watering System (HCWS) Repairs and Upgrades
The HCWS is owned, operated and maintained by USBR. The following repairs and upgrades
have been identified by USBR with the status of each (Table 1).

Item #3e
Page 2



Table 1: List of HCWS repairs and upgrades as reviewed by USBR Management on 2/18/15.
#

Tasks Status:

1 Run a watering truck to LRP for 10 hrs/day until Pumps #1+2 are operational Completed - 5/30/14 thru 6/10/14
2 ‘Replace failed Pump #1 on HCWS Pumping Barge Completed - 6/9/14
3 :Conduct repairs on Pump #2 on HCWS Pumping Barge Completed - 6/10/14

Install temporary HC Emergency Backup System (HCEBS) at Bradbury Dam Outlet Works: ;
4 . Receive contractor bids ) o Completed (2 rounds) )
s lssue a contract and a Notice to Proceed letter Completed - contract issued on 9/3/14
& Install steel riser pipe off of the 10" release valve at Outlet Works (USBR) ) ‘Completed - 6/20/14 )
7 . Construct the HCEBS Pending (started 12/1/14 + estimated completion 2/13/15)

~ Electrical controlers and testing still needed
‘Work to be completed once the HCEBS is installed:

8 . Provide low flow delivery (~1.5 cfs) to HC to accommodate < 30,000 af of storage Pending (completion of the HCEBS)

8 ;. Finalize all needed modifications to Pumps #1+2 ‘Pending (completion of the HCEBS)

10 Upgrade current Motor Control (electrical panel) to assure no power interruption 1o Pumping Barge Pending (completion of the HCEBS)

1. Generaltop of Dam electrical and SCADA upgrades ‘Pending (completion of the HCEBS)

12 ‘Repair the 3 leaky valves at the Outlet works Valve sealing done in December, improved not perfect,
: waork in progress

13 Negotiate a solution for independent CCWA delivery without connecting to the Outlet CCWA, USBR, MUs +SYRWCD to address

14 Install permanent Hilton Creek Backup Delivery System (HCBDS) from the Qutlet Works In preliminary design phase (2016 +/-)

Surcharge Water Accounting

The following table summarizes the amount of Surcharge water used to date from each of the
three accounts at the end of last month (Table 2). All numbers come from USBR’s Daily Operations
Report. The start time for the use of the Surcharge Water Accounts was 5/27/11, or the last day of
full surcharge. As of May 2012, all of the Fish Rearing Account waters have been used and we are
now using Project Yield to meet BO target flows. A WR 89-18 release began on 7/15/13 at 8:15
AM and ended on 12/2/13 at 2:00 PM and another WR 89-18 release began on 8/18/14 and ended
on 11/11/14 at 8:00 AM. During these releases, no Fish Rearing releases are debited as WR 89-18
releases are used conjunctively with fish flows under the Cachuma Project Settlement Agreement.
The Adaptive Management Committee (AMC) called for two release from the Adaptive
Management Account (AMA), 35 acre-feet in October 2012 and 114 acre-feet in June 2013. What
remains of the AMA is 351 acre-feet. Determination of critical drought and the associated
accounting has not been finalized and is not reflected in Table 2.

Table 2: Summary of the surcharge water accounting and use of Project Yield.

Accounts* Allocation  Amount Used** Amount Remaining
Units: (acre-feet) (acre-feet) (acre-feet)
- Fish Passage Supplementation ; 3,200 0 3,200
Adaptive Management ; 500 148 351
Fish Rearing*** 5,484 5484 - 0
Project Yield ' 11,699

; Total: 9,184 17,332 3,551
* Originally was 9,200 af, 8,942 af in 2008 and 9,184 af in 2013. ‘
** Values as of 1/31/15. ; ‘ ;
*** This water is for meeting required target flows. This is not an official account

_and is what remains after subtracting the other two accounts.

Reporting / Outreach / Training

Reporting: Staff is working on the 2012 and 2013 Annual Monitoring Reports that will be sent to
the Science Review Team as soon as possible. The RPM 6 Report regarding monitoring fish
movement during water rights releases has been drafted.

Outreach and Training: Staff continues to work with Quiota Creek and Salsipuedes Creek
watershed landowners, interested parties within the Santa Ynez Valley and the County on a variety
of fisheries related issues.

ltem #3e
Page 3



Consultant Activity Summary

HDR Fisheries Design Center (Mike Garello) — Design work for the Quiota Creek Crossings 0, 3,
4 and 8 projects.

Stetson Engineers (Ali Shahroody) — Santa Ynez River hydrological analyses.

Cardno (Jean Baldrige) — BO compliance tasks and support.

ltem #3e
Page 4



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 23, 2015
TO: Randall Ward, General Manager
FROM: Dave Stewart, Operations Division Manager
RE: MONTHLY OPERATIONS DIVISION REPORT
Operations

The Annual Work Plan sets forth those activities necessary to ensure system reliability.
Consistent with the Plan, Operation and Maintenance staff performs routine maintenance on the
distribution and storage system. Staff continually endeavors to improve the system, address
deficiencies and identify items to be included in the Infrastructure Improvement Program (IIP).

Lake Cachuma Operations

The total flow from Lake Cachuma into the Tecolote Tunnel for January was 789.0 acre-feet, for
an average daily flow of 25.4 acre-feet. Lake elevation was 688.33 feet at the beginning of the

month and 688.23 feet at the end. Storage change decreased 194 acre-feet. CCWA wheeled
830.2 acre-feet of water to Cachuma Project facilities.

Operation and Maintenance Activities

COMB Staff reqularly performs the following duties:

Weekly Safety Meetings

Weekly Rodent Bait (All Reservoirs)

Weekly Toe Drain and Piezometer reads at Ortega (L23)
Dam inspection and reports (All Reservoirs)

Structure Maintenance per Work Plan

USA Dig Alert — Responded as necessary to alerts
Pesticide report to County of Santa Barbara

Operational tests of generators at the North Portal and at Lauro Yard
Inspection of Fire Extinguishers

Read Anodes and Rectifier Data

Water Samples taken at Lake Cachuma

Meter Calibration performed on all Venturi Meters

e e © © © © ¢ © e & o o0

Weekly Safety Meetings:

The purpose of the weekly safety meetings is to continue education of staff on safe practices in
the field and on-site. In these safety meetings, staff is urged to ask questions about the topic
being discussed and share some incidences related to the topic. Discussion includes how the

Item #3f
Page 1



incident could have been prevented. Regular safety meetings help staff to constantly have
safety on their mind. The following topics were reviewed this past month:

Emergency! Where’s the fire extinguisher
PPE

Protect your hearing
Shake bites: an uncommon, but severe, outdoor hazard
Setting up for a safe traffic control zone

ASENENRNEN

COMB Crew specifically performed the following activities:

(]

Annual valve exercising at Lauro valve station, (10 valves). Valve exercising is done on
an annual basis in accordance to COMB's Standing Operating Procedure (SOP) and to
ensure the reliability of operation of these valves in an emergency situation.

Annual valve exercising at Sheffield valve station, (9 valves). Valve exercising is done on
an annual basis in accordance to COMB’s Standing Operating Procedure (SOP) and to
ensure the reliability of operation of these valves in an emergency situation.

Annual valve exercising at Ortega Reservoir and valve station, (14 valves). Valve
exercising is done on an annual basis in accordance to COMB’s Standing Operating
Procedure (SOP) and to ensure the reliability of operation of these valves in an
emergency situation.

One Air Vacuum Air Release (AVAR) Valve was rehabilitated to meet updated standards
and USBR Categorical Recommendations at Station 703+00 (photo below).

All Operations staff attended an Emergency Action Plan (EAP) training day led by the
Bureau of Reclamation.

All Operations staff attended an Emergency Operations Center (EOC) training led by
personnel from the County EOC office, and held on site at the County EOC office.
COMB Operations staff attended this training to know where to report in the event of a
major natural disaster.

Staff cleaned valve pits at Ortega Reservoir, Lauro Reservoir, Carpinteria Reservoir, and
Sheffield Control Station in preparation of the storms.

COMB Operations staff assisted COMB Fisheries Division with the Oak Tree program by
digging holes for new oak trees (approximately 200 holes).

COMB Operations staff repaired sloughing/sliding areas around Ortega Reservoir for
Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to ensure reliability of access to the
main operations areas surrounding the Reservoir (photo below).

Operations staff performed weed abatement around Lauro Yard and Reservoir.
Operations staff performed weed abatement around Ortega valve station and Reservoir.
Operations staff painted exposed raw steel inside lateral structure 893+90 TO (photo
below).

Operations staff installed a head wall behind Station 18+95 AV. Installing the head walll
prevents any sloughing/sliding of earthen materials from inundating the structure (photos
below).

Operations staff took its two truck mounted Crane trucks to “A-1 Truck and Equipment”
for inspection and repair.

Structure Maintenance at Lower Reach Stations 740+65 TO, 755+84 AV, 765+84 TO,
765+81 TO, 784+75 TO, 798+06 TO, 803+45 TO, 804+24 BO, 833+55 TO, 837+65 TO,
894+80 TO, 850+50 MH, 851+93 TO, 855+90 TO, 880+05 BO, 880+40 TO, 893+90 TO.

Additionally, Operations staff has been involved in activities related to the EPFP, elevator
rehabilitation, IP and investigation of the Lower Reach AVAR conditions.

ltem #3f
Page 2



Pictures

1on

(Before and After) USBR Category 1 Recommendat

itation

AVAR 703+00 Rehab

(Before and After)

18+95 AV

on

t Stat

mstallation a

Head wall

ltem #3f

Page 3



893+90 TO (Before and After)

1on

Painted exposed raw steel at Stat

t Ortega Reservoir (Before and After)

ing areas a

ing/slidi

d slough

Repaire

ltem #3f

Page 4



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
METERED USE REPORT FOR JANUARY 2015

LATERAL/ ACRE FEET |[LATERAL/ ACRE FEET
STATION NAME METERED | [STATION NAME METERED
CARPINTERIA WATER DISTRICT GOLETA WATER DISTRICT
Ortega South Flow 7.79 18+62 G. WEST 25.86
Asegra Road (2.69) |78+00 Corona Del Mar FILTER Plant 243.51
Lambert Road 0.00| (122420 STOW RANCH 0.00
Toro Canyon 0.00 Bishop Ranch (Wynmark)(Water Rights) 0.00
Raytheon (SWP) (Warren Act Contract) 0.00
Morehart (SWP) (Warren Act Contract) 0.00
GWD SWP CREDIT (Warren Act Contract) (269.38)
TOTAL 0.00
MONTECITO WATER DISTRICT
260+79 BARKER PASS 23.32
386+65 MWD YARD 0.22
487+07  VALLEY CLUB 0.04
499+65 E. VALLEY-ROMERO PUMP 68.93
599+27 TORO CANYON 0.00
510+95 ORTEGA CONTROL 2.54
510485 MWD PUMP (SWD) 6.72
526+43 ASEGRARD 269
555+80 CO. YARD 0.00
583+00 LAMBERTRD 0.00
MWD SWP CREDIT (Warren Act Contract) (104.45)
TOTAL {0.00)
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
CATER  INFLOW 738.38
" SO. FLOW {262.71)
Gibralter PENSTOCK (52.31)
Sheffield SHEF.LIFT 125.54
STANWOOD MTR TO SCC-credit 0.00
City SWP(Warren Act) {363.00)
La Cumbre Mutual (SWP)(Warren Act) (43.96)
TOTAL 141.95
SANTA YNEZ RIVER WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, ID#1
COUNTY PARK, ETC 1.59
TOTAL 1.59
BREAKDOWNRN OF DELIVERIES BY TYPE:
STATE WTR CRD 0.00 | ISTATE WTR DELIVERED TO LAKE 833.00
TOTAL 511 STATE WATER TO SOUTH COAST (including from storage) (780.79)
Note; BISHOP RANCH DIVERSION 0.00
COMB meter reads were taken on 1/30/2015 METERED DIVERSION 148.64
ltem #3¢g

Page 1



14- 15 ENTITLEMENT
CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
WATER PRODUCTION AND WATER USE REPORT
FOR THE MIONTH OF JANUARY 2015 AND THE WATER YEAR TO DATE
(All in rounded Acre Feet)

MONTH YTD

TOTAL TOTAL
WATER PRODUCTION:
Cachuma Lake (Tec. Diversion) 789 5,331
Tecolote Tunnel Infiltration 134 516
Glen Anne Reservoir 0 0
Cachuma Lake (County Park) 2 7
State Water Diversion Credit 781 2,745
Bishop Ranch Diversion 0 0
Meter Reads 149 2,912
So. Coast Storage gain/{loss) (39) (58)
Total Production 924 5,854
Total Deliveries 890 5,599
Unaccounted-for 34 255
% Unaccounted-for 3.73% 4.36%

; GWD SBCITY MWD CVWD - SYRWCD TOTAL

WATER USE: LD.#1
M&i 0 142 0 3 2 146
Agricultural 0 0 0 2

Same Molprev. yr 512 1,018 365

307 2 2,204
M&! Yr to date 1,100 882 0 218 7 2,208
Ag. Yr to date 443 0 0 261 0 704
TOTAL YTD 1,543 882 0 479 7 2,911
USAGE % YTD 23.1% 13.6% 2.6% 26.8% 2.1% 14.5%
Previous Year/YTD 3,322 4,230 1,069 1,065 12 9,698
Evaporation 6 13 14 0 8 41
Evaporation, YTD 76 101 g5 11 50 333
Entitlement *** 4,195 3,725 1,193 1,266 1,193 11,672
Carryover 2,819 3,188 2,778 564 1,457 10,806
Carryover Balances Spilled YTD 0 0 0 0 0 0
Surplus™ 0 0 o 0 0 ]
State Water Exchange® 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers/Adjustment ¢ 0 297 (297) 0 0 0
Passthrough H20™* 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL AVAILABLE 7,014 7,210 3,674 1,830 2,650 22,378
REMAINING BALANCE 5,395 8,227 3,579 1,340 2,593 19,134
*** MU's agreed to 55% reduction of normal (25,714 AF) entitlement
** City is operating under pass through mode declared November 2008.
State Water Deliveries for January to Lake Cachuma were: MWD 0 AF; CVWD 0 AF
GWD 470 AF(Morehart 0 AF); City of $.B. 363 AF; and LaCumbre 0 AF: (Ratheon 0 AF).
~ Per SWP Exchange Agrmt GWD received 0 AF; MWD received 0 AF;
City of SB received 0 AF; and CVWD received 0 AF from ID#1 in January 2015,
# Juncal transfer to City per annual agreement
ltem #3g

Page 2



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD

WATER STORAGE REPORT

GLEN ANNIE RESERVOIR
Capacity at 385" elevation:

Capacity at sill of intake at 334' elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

LAURO RESERVOIR
Capacity at 549' elevation:

Capacity at sill of intake at 512" elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

ORTEGA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 460' elevation:
Capacity at outlet at elevation 440"

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

CARPINTERIA RESERVOIR
Capacity at 384’ elevation:
Capacity at outlet elevation 362"

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

TOTAL STORAGE IN RESERVOIRS
Change in Storage

CACHUMA RESERVOIR*
Capacity at 750' elevation:
Capacity at sill of tunnel 660" elevation:

Stage of Reservoir Elevation
Water in Storage

Surface Area

Evaporation

Inflow

Downstream Release WR8918
Fish Release (Hilion Creek)
Outlet

Spill/Seismic Release

State Project Water

Change in Storage

Tecolote Diversion

Rainfall: Month:

7.57 Season:

MONTH:

1.59

January 2015

518 Acre Feet
21 Acre Feet

347.00 Feet
87.85 Acre Feet

600 Acre Feet
84.39 Acre Feet

545,70 Feet
523.61 Acre Feet

65 Acre Feet
0 Acre Feet

449.30 Feet
26.97 Acre Feet

45 Acre Feet
0 Acre Feet

375.30 Feet
24.15 Acre Feet

574.73 Acre Feet
-39.44 Acre Feet

186,636 Acre Feet
25,668 Acre Feet

688.23 Feet

56,977 AF
1,382

171.9 AF
81.9 AF
0.0 AF
239.9 AF
0.0 AF
0 AF
830.2 AF
-194 AF
789.0 AF

Percent of Normal: 76%

ltem #3g
Page 3



8€E"L WLOL
dag
Bny
np
unp
Aely
Jdy
JBiN
go4
99z1 €69 £€9 0 zL uep
g9zt £€9 £€9 0 8L o801
99z1 ££9 £€9 0 k4D AON
9924 £69 £69 0 8.2 fisle]
[gloL oV BN oy BT EIE Yo
SIONYIVE DNINIVINZY
[s] dag
4] By
0 e
0 unp
[¢] Aepy
0 iy
0 BN
0 g8
0 uep 0 0 ¢ €
bt 28 0 0 gz- 74
9 AON 0 0 g2 7
0 le] 0 0 801~ 804
99zZ't ££9 ££9 4 yog jeg uibeg YUow 1By eI 1By 1%
{eloL oy B oY BT =L FINAIHOS INIHHND HILYM FOVHOLS
SNOISIAZY ONY FINCIHOS SNOISIAZY ANV FINAIHOS SNOISHIANOD
6L¥ 192 8lz v98 992} jeo)
0 0 deg
0 0 By
0 0 inp
0 0 unp
] 0 Re
0 0 Jdy
0 0 Je
; 0 0 ga4
0 0 0 £ 9 g 0 g z g uerp
0 0 0 14 fix'd 54 0 £r 8k o7 el
0 0 0 72 854 g51 € GGl i8 vi AON
0 0 0 0zi S6Z 9z 6 9.2 091 gLl $95 9924 1°0
1ej0L 1By KT by X [GEE Ag deAd B0 iby [ JBOASNOWBIY  JBBA UBLND yiuon
198)-2I0y UOB20HY | 199)-810Y 1884810y Jsaofuen  sINpayos
LNSINEILLLNG INSHHND OL STONVIVE HIAOAHMYD OL G3SN HILYM IVLOL panciddy
aa9UVYHD g3sN ¥ILYM AIONVHD GaSN ¥ILYM
SL/LEN "G 0D Ag pejepdn 3sen
13181 J87eMm AsiieA Bpsjuldie) Aguz penuod

gL/0e/6

0] yL/1L/04 JBBA J0BJUCY

Z0BL-HSLI# LOVHINGD - LOFrOHd YINNHIYD
=S8N WALYA H0 AUVIRINNS

ltem #3g

Page 4



S6€'S WLOL
deg
bny
r
ung
>m_2
idy
Jeiy
994
SBLY 09zt SE62 e 196 00zl uep
1184 09z} SE62 Zie 766 90z 98¢
56L¥ 09ZL 5€62 6%Z 9041 9sEL AON
S6Ly 09z} 5862 izy Zrst 69651 f<le]
[EETH oV 5] ov [T JEioL Yol
SIAONYIVE DNINIVINIY
0 deg
0 Bny
G np
[ unp
0 Aew
0 sdy
3} Je
0 qad
0 uep 0 0 0 0
v s8( 0 0 0 o
p AON o] o] 0 0
0 10 0 0 ] 0
S6L'F 092’ SE6'T 249 44 %4 8182 leg uibag Yjuopw by 13N 16y 2N
=T ov N ov BT jeioL FNAIHOS INIHHUND HILVYM FOVHOLS
SNOISIARY ANV S3NAIHOS SNOISHIANOD
risL (214 0041 6182 g6LY izl }
0 0 dag
o 0 Bny
0 0 iy
0 0 unp
0 0 Aey
0 0 sdy
0 0 e
0 0 qe4
0 0 0 1 ] g 0 9 0 0 0 uep
0 0 0 i Pil 05t shl g shl Se Okt 28Q
0 0 0 8L1 gey €19 969 18 965 ZLL €Ty AON
0 0 0 05z 009 058 £08 g £08 oo 195 6182 S6LY 0
{e10] 1By 13 JBy 13N Bl A deng 1BloL 1By 1% N JBBASROMEI]  JEDA JUBLND yuow
198)-810Y uoljedolly ] JEETETNIY) JEEETY JenofueD  8Inpsyog
INIWITLILNG INSYHENO OL SHONVIVE HIAOAMUYO OL GISN HILYM TVIOL pasoiddy
qIDUVHI g3SN HILYM GE9UVHD 03SN HILVM
SLLEN "g'W 0D Aq peiepdn 3sen
10181 191BA% BIBJ0D Ajug pequon
GLI0EI6 01 PL/LI0L HBBA J9BHUOD

Z0BL-USLH LOVELINOD - LO3r0¥d YINNHOVD

QHESN YILYM 4O AUVINNS

ltem #3¢g

Page 5



SLI0E/6 (0 ¥1/1/01 NESA PRIUCYD

645'¢ WLOL
des
Bny
np
unp
Aepy
sy
Jen
ged
968 162~ 0 662 ¥8e'e £892 uep
968 0 162~ 108 96£'2 1892 28
968 162- 0 Le 968'2 02 AON
£61°L 0 0 £l 6LY'e 2eL'2 PO
T 1By EX]] by TN jeio], Yiuo
SIONYIVE ONINIVINTY
0 deg 0 0 0 0
0 Bny 0 0 0 0
0 inp 0 0 0 0
0 unp
0 Re
0 Idy
0 JeN
0 qed
] uep (L62) [ASIA:TA ] ]
0 28Q 162 ze'L6e- 0 o
(L62) (162) Ao o} Jejsues jeounp AON (L62) ze'162 0 ]
0 0 0 0 0 0
£61'L £8 OLL'E 8Le 09p'Z 8LLT jeg uibeg Lo 1By 12N 1By 3
B0 16y EX]] 1By (X oL FINAIHOS LNTHHUND YILYM FOVHOLS
SNOISIAZY GNV 3INA3HOS SNOISHIANOD
0 [V 0 8LLZ €614 jeloL
0 0 deg
0 0 By
0 0 np
0 0 unp
0 0 Aepy
0 0 idy
0 0 e
0 0 ged
0 4] [¢] 4 Zi 143 o] 43 0 Q 0 uep
] 0 0 o4 0 ok 0 ] 0 0 0 %8
0 0 0 z £z g2 0 14 0 0 0 AON
0 0 0 [ 84 oy 0 ay 0 0 0 8LLZ €611 100
{ejo.L 1By 12N JBy KX iejlol AQ deAg 1€10} by 2N JEBA SNOWGIY  JESA AN yluop
169)-810y UOREa0}y T 180800y jeareny 1enohueD  8npayos
INIWITLILNG INSHMNO OL SHONYIVE HIAQANYVI OL aasN HILYM TVLOL panoiddy
QI9OYUYHD QISN HILYM a3DYYHI QESN HELYM
SULE/N 'G'W'Q'D Ag pajepdn jset
JOLSICT J8IBAN OHODJUOWN AU Pejuod

TOBL-HGLI# LOVHLINOD - LOZMrOHd YINNHOVO

azsn YILYM J0 AUVIIIAING

ltem #3¢g

Page 6



8ze'e WiOL
dag
Bny
nr
unp
Aep
ddy
ey
qs4
Zzov 0 z20¥ ] $022 9022 uer
zz08 ] 2oy 0 09€2 08g2 %8Q
zZzov 0 220p 0 0852 0862 AON
6zLE 0 s2.8 0 8642 8642 =lo]
B0 ———— s — [0 [Bl1oL Yluop
SIONVIVE ONINIVINGY
o] deg
0 Bny
[ Inp
0 unp
0 Aew
o] Jdy
0 Jew
0 ged
0 uep 4} 0 0 ¢}
0 290 0 0 [ 0
182 162 QM WoJ Jajsurl) [eoung AON 0 0 0 0
0 100 0 0 0 0
gzl S2L'E 881'e 88L'e ieg uibag yuop By IzW 1By 12N
eyl e eI e B B0l FINAIHOS LNIUWUND HILYM IOVHOLS
SNOISIASY aNV 3TNAZHOS SNOISYIANOD
Z88 0 z88 881¢ §2.€ oL
a 0 dog
¢} o} Bny
0 0 inr
0 0 unp
0 0 Aepy
0 0 Jdy
0 0 e
0 0 qad
0 0 0 ] §61 o1 Zyl el b4 4% 0 ta 2" uer
0 0 Q0 [ 1744 0ee [1]%4 (4] oig 0 0ig o8g
0 0 0 0 gie 81z €6} sz €6l 0 €61 AON
0 0 0 0 08¢ 06¢ 486 £5 88 1} g€ agLe szle 10
{eloL oy K1 by 12 W BloL Ald deag jEj0} 1By 12N JeaAsnomesd  Jesx weund yjuop
}93)-310y uoliesoliy 188)-a10y 198010y Janchuen  sinpayes
ANSWITLIING INZHNND OL SAONVIVE HIAOAUNYO OL QHSN YILVM VLIOL panoiddy
QIONYHD ISN HILVM QIOUYHD ISN HILYM
SHIL/ 'G'W 0D Aq pajepdn jse
vieqieg ejueg Jo L3110 Aguzg peiuod

GL/OEI6 0} FLILIOL HBBA JoRJUGD

Z08L-MELH LOVHINOGD - LOArOHd YWNHOYD
QISN YLV 40 AUVINNNS

Item #3g

Page 7



WiOoL

GL/0E/6 1O} YL/LAOL UBBA JORNUOYD

£85'2
dag
fny
inp
unp
>m—2
ady
JeN
994
€641 0 £611 eLLL 22y ooVt 69°L uep
€611 ] €61l eilL gEy (182 80t s8Q
€6LL 0 €611 eLLL (A% aivl ve'L Aoy 13LON.
€611 0 €611 eLLL 57 LepL 512 00
oL 10y EX iby N [T pasn 3y yiuop
SHONVIVE ONINIVINTY MUY ALNNOD
] dag
0 Bny
0 e
0 unp
0 Aew
0 sy
0 ey
0 qad
0 uer ] 0 ] 0
0 v8Q ] 0 0 0
0 ABN 0 0 0 0
0 j=le] 0 0 0 0
£6L°L 0 £61°'L £LLL £8Y L5h'L jeg uibeg YuoW 16y 13N 1By 2N
01 1By KX by KX 1oL IINAFHOS INFUHNO HILYM JOVHOLS
SNOISIAZY NY 3INAIHOS SNOISHIANOD
L [ L p1:148 €611 oL
0 0 deg
0 ] Bny
] 0 e
0 0 unp
0 0 Repy
0 0 ady
0 0 Jepy
0 0 g8
0 0 4] 0 [ 6 Z 8 4 0 Z uep
0 1] 0 0 8 g ¢ ) 13 0 3 28Q
0 0 0 0 -] fo18 z £l [4 ] 2 AoN
0 0 0 ] 8z [:74 4 ¥z z 0 z 15v1 €611 00
[Ej01 1By K17 1By 13 W oL AQ deAg 1ZoL 1By K3 1BOASNOIABIY  JBAUINND yuop
189}-2)0V 189}-240Y 188}-210%
ANZWFTLILNG INSHNNO OL SHONYIVE HIAOANUVI OL a3sn ¥ILYM YLOL Janokue)  einpsyog
CIOUVHO 38N YILYM QEOUYHD IS0 HILVM panaiddy
qULENL "8'WO 0 Aq pojepdn jse
Gl .«2\520 HORBAIESUCD IBJBAA JOALY ZBU A BjURE ”b_«cm oepuoD

ZO8L-MSLHE LOVHLNOD - LOIMOHd YWNHOVD

QHSN YHLVM H0 AUVIRINS

ltem #3¢g

Page 8



gel'sl WLOL
deg
By
ne
unpe
>m§
Jdy
JeiN
ged
Zi5H) 9651 £8.9 164° £00°'9 1962 851 uep
ZLSLY €681 o8y8 §9.'t ¥8L'9 0514 80'L 28
ZiStL 9651 €819 gs8l 745 ] 1818 ve'l AON
ZL51L £681 98Y8 Z6le giel 6026 si'g PO
lejol by X i1 [EX [N pesndv Yiuow
STONVYIVE ONINIVINEY SHYUYd ALNNOD
0 0 0 0 0 0 dog
0 0 0 0 0 0 Bny
0 0 ] 0 0 0 e
0 0 0 0 0 ] unp
0 0 0 ] 0 0 Aepw
0 0 0 0 0 0 ady
0 0 0 0 1} 0 BN
0 0 ] 0 0 0 ged
0 0 0 0 0 0 uep 28162 LA €
0 0 ] 0 0 0 28( AW LT z¢e'L82- 5z-
0 0 ] 0 0 0 AON FANL A zeL8e gL~
0 0 0 0 0 ] PO 0 0 801~
Zi8'LL 9/6't 965'6 0222 582'9 908'04 ieg ubeg Yo 1By 18N 1By
feloL By X By K37 oL FINAIHOS INSHUND HILYM FOVHOLS
SNOISIAZY UNY FINAIHDS SNOISHIANOD
116¢C G0 g0c e 9080} rA4:19% BoL
0 0 deg
0 0 Bny
0 0 inp
0 0 unp
0 0 Aepy
o} 0 ady
0 0 ey
0 0 ged .
0 0 0 g v8l 68k (145 154 6¥1 z obi %880 uer
0 0 0 $9 598 1eF 86€ zE 66¢ £5 gve %26t 98(Q
0 0 0 414 L9L 8z0'} gv6 £8 (7] €52 z69 %65y AON
0 0 0 ozy LV 269'L aie'k 6LL gLyt 96¢ 220'} AN 90801 ZLGLL 00
[EloL by i3 W Jby 12N Bl AQ deas felol 1By TN % 98] BOASNONI]  JBOA WUBLND YIuop
199)-8i0y uoijeaolly | 1831-8.0Y JEEIZEY] J18AOALED)  BINPayos
INFNITLILNG LINSHENO OL SHONYIVE ¥IAOAHYYO OL Q38N ¥aLYM V1oL panciddy
gI9UVHD QISN HILYM QIODUVHD 03N HILYM
SLVEIL G'W 0™ Aq pejepdn iser

§1/0€/6 :0) ¥L/1/0} JBBA JOBRUOD

AouaBy leigpp "o0 elegleg vues

Az penuod

Z08L-¥SLH LOVHINOD - LOArOYd YINNHOYD

aasn HALYM 20 AUVIINNGS

ltem #3¢g

Page 9



item #3g
Page 10

o J0 [0 o o 8 Jr It 0 |0 |9z o o Jtec |0 ese fvob IS 0 Jo o Jo Jo o Jees 18101
o |0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o o o 0 0 o |0 0 o 1o 0 Joquiatag
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [} [ 0 o] 0 8] _o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 J8quUsAON
o |0 0 0 0 0 fo 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 o Jaqopo
0 5] 0 io 0 o} ] 4} 0 [+} 0 3} 1o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 laquisides
o jo o 0 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 0 ) 0 0 |o o o o o 0 0 o o 1snBny
¢ o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o {0 oo 0 0 o o o 0 0 0 Anp
o o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 aunp
6 o 0 0 ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 oo 0 0 o o 0 0 0 o few
o o 0 mo 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o g0 o o 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 fudy
o |0 0 0 0 o 0 0 o 0 o g 0 0 0 fo 0 0 g o 0 0 0 0 tosep
o o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o 0 0 0. .o 0 0 0 0 Arenigag
o o 0 0 0 0 vy € L8 - 1o 89z 102 - losy fese [0 Jese froL |& s8L o 0 a 0 ees Arenuep
o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 800 |0 0 o 0 o o o 0 0 8 -0 0 0. o 0 pmid ‘feg
; §10Z

08 o1 [peloiS [@3BT1 01 08 O [pasoig [oen oHf DS O Jiids/deAz ueswmxﬁs_ows PRIOIS |87 0}/ 05 OF [PRIOIGRMET O OS @1 | {ilds: " [pRi0iS | oXe"t o) [AN )OS 0). | Palolg: [eXeT 01} 3MVIOL | HINOW
pNRQ. OTIN | PAIRA | PAIRC SASY PART. |- PAIRQ OMINOT  PARQ | PAIRT - OMO u>_m%~ paeg . 'a's 38,‘ pARQ]. - /deAZ QMIN - PAIQ- [ SUBLL PARQ: OMAD PNRQ |  QMATEA

{1938Mm aBURLOXS 10 [#0! GOMYAS @pnjdul Jou $80Q) ATNO LSVOD HLNOS - ONILNNODOV LOAMOHd HALYM 3LV.LS gINOD
sz o sz ez 0 2z sy |2 609 fg0LL jezvy lo zevy jelee |0 [eiee fvsez el vi8 liwee  Jo 8L {0 184 Joezel 1ejoL
0 0 0 zz |0 zz foe F 809 - Jo 0 o 0 6vz |0 [6vz [s¥8 |V vig o 0 0 0 1z Jequiaseq
o o 0 0 0 o ¥ S e Jevt Jo 0 o s6c |0 |ese fJsesL | ¥ zos |L04 0 0 0 6vZ1 JaquisnoN
o o 0 0 0 0 ! L oS foib el o ebb foi6 |0 o5 joesz | S sa% |evy 0 e 0 9621 J10qo1R0
§ 0 5 0 0 0 a5 z 8Ly jeol yezv o ezy [soe 0. - eoe Jesz |2 16z 80 ol |0 TR 71740 Jequisides
s o 9 0 0 0 mﬂ [ S48 (80L ey O &p e o ipie fisee | 82 IpiE izk o izL Jueet ysnBny
s o 9 0 0 0 el z ggz. fsov Juwv o v fae jo lie jyeoZ |4 8L |52 85t Jo 85l fzosl Ainp
s o § 0 0 0 te L vez  {siL fesy o zey fsve |0 Jeve gssz | zob lele o5 o 05 99z sunp
e o € 0 0 0 zg b zi1 lozy gsee o gee [zee o Jeee fiiez Jo 18 |zee oc |0 oe szl ke
¢ o 0 o 0 0 2L b soLjee  fzis o ot fesr Jooo o fszL Jest o 0 es o 0 o o8 judy/
o |0 0 0 0 0 ¥l 0 58 les oeev fsee . |eve fese o fesz fiZel o g8 isvZ sob o soL  fesel yotew
o {0 o 0 0 0 9 {0 1z jes [i'ees isL |eys ooz o - jo02 jooz o 0 ooz sel o €8l f89el Asernigad
o |0 0 0 0 0 59 |0 0 v sle |0 g9 fes jo fzs fzs o 0 s vs o v 5.8 Kienuep
o {0 0 o 0 0 0 0 ve o 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 0 o |0 0 0 0 0 pmig ‘feg

; y10Z

D 0} |pe:oi§ [o4ET 01 05 © [Paioig [eNe 1ol 06 o Jilds/deA3|palo)s et o)f OF OF |Poiols PaET oﬁ 35 1 [PRICISPYET O OGS OF | 105 |paiois| %el Of [N O OS Of | PaioiS [¥eTo] aMVIOL | HINOW
pASQ DTN -PAIRQ | PNRO SASYH PAIBG | PAIBD OMIDT E_m%_ pABa QM PAIBC | PMBQ 'E'S PAIBQ | pAROY - /dBAT OMIN  PNRQ | JSURIL pAlRQ  GMAD PARA | - GUATEA

{1e3em abueloxa 10 L#Al ‘GOMMAS epnjoul Jou seod) ATNO LSVOD HINOS - ONILNNOOIY LOArOUd ¥aLYM 3LVLS 80D



Cachuma Lake Recreation Area
Boat Launch Data -- JANUARY 2015

Inspection Data

Total Vessels entering Park

87
Total Vessels launched 80
Total Vessels Quarantined 71 8%
Returning with Boat Launch Tag 63 | 79%
New: Removed from Quarantine 11 1%
Kayak/Canoe: Inspected, launched 16 | 20%
4-stroke Engines 12 | 15%
2-strokes, w/CARB star ratings 44 | 55%
2-strokes, NO emissions ratings 8110%

Quarantine Data

Total Vessels Quarantined 7
Quarantined 7 days -
Quarantined 14 days -
Quarantined 30 days 7

Quarantine Reasons -- Can be several for 1 boat

Water on vessel*

Debris on hull*

Plug installed*

From infected county 0
Ballast tanks* *
Boat longer than 24 feet* *
Out-of-state 0
Unspecified* *
Mandatory Quarantine All Untagged Boats 7
Demographic Data
Quarantined from infected county 0
Quarantined from SB County 7
Quarantined from other uninfected co 0

* These conditions will not be tracked while the manadatory 30-day

quarantine is adopted, as of 15 April 2014.
CACHUMA LAKE QUAGGA SURVEY:

Summary: No Dreissenid mussels were detected

Santa Barbara County Community Services Department
Parks Division, Cachuma Lake Recreation Area

Summary of Aquatic Invasive Species Vessel Inspection Program
and Early Detection Monitoring Program

Boat Launch Tags: Boats with
Cachuma Lake Boat Launch
Tags attached to boat and
trailer. These boats have not
been removed from trailer
since last visit to lake and are
not subject to inspection or
decontamination.

No musse! species have been
located on any vessel
entering Cachuma Lake as of
JANUARY 31, 2015.

Inspection site: Cachuma Lake Marina, Santa Barbara County, California
Inspection Date and Time : 2015.01.22; 13:30 - 16:30 PDT
Method: 14 PVC/Cement Sampling Stations; 152 linear feet of line
Surveyors: Liz Gaspar (Parks Division, CSD), Keith Yaeger, Rose Dodgen (Sea Grant).

Lake elevation: Max feet: 753.00, current: 688.18; Max acre-feet: 193,000, current: 56,907;

Current capacity: 29%

Prepared by Liz Gaspar, based on inspections and data collected by Cachuma Lake Staff and Park Hosts, and Sea Grant staff and interns

ltem #3¢g
Page 11



CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: February 23, 2015

Submitted by: | Tim Robinson

Approved by: | Randall Ward

SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO CCC CONTRACT — OAK TREE PROGRAM

SUMMARY:

Due to the extensive amount of work being accomplished by the California Conservation Corps (CCC) on
behalf of COMB (Operations and Fisheries), we have exhausted our current contract with the CCCs. The
oak tree mitigation planting effort at Lake Cachuma requires CCC assistance for ten additional working
days to finalize planting for this year. COMB received a CCC proposed contract augmentation for
$18,019 to address this requested work. This additional labor expense will be charged to the Oak Tree

Program budget line item which currently has sufficient funds due to an unanticipated reduced cost of
materials and supplies.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Reviewed and approved by Administrative Committee for submittal to Board of Directors.

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to execute an amendment to the CCC contract in the amount of $18,019
for the Oak Tree Program utilizing current fiscal year funding.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

N/A

ltem #3h

Page 1




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD
BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: February 23, 2015

Approved by: | Randall Ward

SUBJECT: EPFP - HDR Professional Services Agreement Contract Amendment

Summary

In December 2013, the COMB Board authorized the General Manager to enter into a Professional
Services Agreement with HDR Engineering, Inc. to perform engineering / project management related
services on the Emergency Pumping Facilities Project. This scope of work included the development of
a project definition, preparing and administering the RFQ process, developing the DBOM RFP package,
design oversight, project management and construction administration.

To continue the engineering / project management services related to the facility operation and
maintenance of the EPFP, staff is proposing to amend and extend the existing Professional Services
Agreement through the end of FY 2014-15. The current fiscal year approved budget {2014-15) contains
authorized funding for this line item. The scope of work for the amended contract includes engineering
services related to facility operation on an as-needed basis including coordination with the DBOM
contractor and assistance in resolution of operational scenarios and potential issues, and technical
support as requested by COMB relative to ongoing operations and maintenance goals. For example,
included but not fimited to, is support regarding the purchase and options to store the pipe from the

existing project, issues regarding relocation of the pipe and pump barge if necessary and ongoing regular
oversight of contractor operation and maintenance.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

The proposed amended amount was included in the FY 2014-15 adopted budget.
LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

N/A

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Reviewed and approved by Administrative Commitiee for submittal to Board of Directors.

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend the Board approve an amendment and extension to the existing HDR Professional Services

Agreement up to $52,000 through FY 2014-15 for continued engineering / project management services
related to the EPFP.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1. HDR Proposed Amendment

ltem #5

Page™




hdrinc.com

February 17, 2014

Randy Ward

Cachuma Operation and Maintenance Board
3301 Laurel Canyon Road

Santa Barbara, CA 93105

Dear Mr. Ward:

HDR is dedicated to the continued success of COMB's Emergency Pumping Supply Facility Project
and would like to request that our current professional services agreement be amended to extend

HDR's participation as “Owners Representative” through the end of this fiscal year. As part of this
amendment HDR proposes the following:

» Extend the current professional services agreement expiration date to June 30", 2015;

e Add Budget to accommodate Task 8 Engineering Services related to Facility Operation and
Task 9 Engineering Services as Owners Representative.

A revised scope of services which includes the additions made to Tasks 8 and 9 is provided as
Exhibit A. A summary of the intent of each task is presented below:

o Task 8 Engineering Services related to Facility Operation ~ Includes the addition of scope
and budget to perform technical support services on an as-requested basis to facilitate
execution of the current DBOM contract and further operation of the facility. This task
includes regular coordination with the DBOM contractor and assistance in resolution of
operational scenarios and potential issues as desired by COMB. Additional technical
assistance related to operational forecasting, development of pipeline storage and
anchoring concepts, power supply options, and other engineering related activities are also
anticipated.

e Task 9 Engineering Services — Includes the addition of scope and budget to facilitate
HDR'’s role as “Owner’s Representative” and to provide additional technical support as
requested by COMB relative to other ongoing operations and maintenance goals at Lake
Cachuma or as part of COMB's water supply network.

A summary of the proposed line item transfers of budget as well as addition of budget to new tasks
is provided in the table below. A detailed breakdown of the estimated costs is attached as
Exhibit B.

Table 1. Proposed Amendment Cost Summary

ltem Current Proposed Amended
Contract Amendment Contract Total
Task 8 Engineering Services ~ Facility Operation $0 $42.940 $42 940
Task 9 Engineering Services — Owners Rep 30 $8,576 $8,576
$ 198,748 $51,516 $250,264

4717 97th Street, NW, Gig Harbor, WA 98332-5710
(253) 858-5262

ltem #5
Page 2




Thank you for your consideration and the opportunity to work with you through completion of this
challenging project. We appreciate your business, enjoy our long term working relationship, and
look forward to assisting COMB achieve their ongoing goals. Should you have any comments,
questions, or recommendations to modify this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind Regards,

/ A~ Mi/-\\ ‘
Michael C. Garello David A. Ludwin
HDR Contract Manager Senior Vice President

hdrinc.com

4717 97th Street, NW, Gig Harbor, WA 98332-5710
(253) 858-5262

ltem #5
Page 3



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
EMERGENCY PUMPING SUPPLY PROJECT

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING RELATED SERVICES
BY HDR ENGINEERING, INC.

February 17, 2015 EXHIBIT A - SCOPE OF SERVICES
Amendment 1of1

This scope of services provides Cachuma Operations and Maintenance Board {COMB) with engineering support
and construction support services directed towards the implementation of an emergency pumping supply (EPS) on
Lake Cachuma. HDR Engineering, Inc. staff will perform services listed herein under the direction of Randy Ward,
COMB General Manager. Primary services included under this scope includes those activities identified as being
required to assist COMB with constructing a new facility with adequate pumping capacity and high level of
reliability to be used as soon as September 2014, but with the capability of engineering and planning strategies to
be available for utilization in response to future drought scenarios. These services may include, but are not
necessarily limited to: development of project definition; development and evaluation of pumping alternatives;
presentation and completion of project definition summary documentation; preparation and support during the
request for qualification process; preparation and support during the request for proposals process; development
of supporting materials for permitting documentation; support through award of the project to a contractor;
design reviews and oversight of submittals developed by the selected contractor; engineering support through
facility operation; and general technical services . Task work and development shall be routinely discussed and

approved by the COMB General Manager. A detailed summary of the proposed services offered within the general
tasks listed above is provided in the following sections.

Task 1 — Develop Project Definition

HDR will perform engineering related support activities associated with identification of specific project
requirements and considerations. As part of this task, HDR will perform the following services:

s Participate in regular progress/review meetings and coordination with COMB as required;

e Participate in monthly Board meetings in addition to the presentation identified in Task 3;

e Review readily available background material including past design criteria, historic demand information,
and as-built information;

e Review desired performance, operational conditions, redundancy requirements, SCADA needs, and
acceptable risks and liabilities;
o Perform site visit and evaluate condition of the existing infrastructure including intake tower; available
power, access, and other reservoir related items;
e  Perform desktop assessment of existing infrastructure relative to projected water demand and lake level
capacity and requirements;
e Identify data gaps and identify the necessity for additional data acquisition or studies;
e  Discuss with COMB staff project funding and needed support dacumentation;
e  Prepare a conceptual project schedule based on the following milestones:
= |n-service date: September 1, 2014
®=  Notice to proceed with construction: April 1, 2014
= Contract signed: Notice to proceed with detailed design: March 1, 2014

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page 1 0of 8 February 17, 2015

item #5
Page 4



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015

e  Evaluate alternatives for Design-Build-Operate-Maintain (DBOM) procurement under California statutes;
provide recommendations for process, including a milestone schedule of activities;
identify desired Design-Build entity qualifications necessary to successfully complete project objectives;

Attend meetings, discuss, and receive input on project requirements and expectations with each Member
Unit; and

Assumptions:

e The above work will be based on information provided by COMB;

®  Progress/review meetings will be performed via telephone conference calls up to a budgetary allowance
of 80 hours divided among muitiple disciplines;

e Tofacilitate additional coordination, it is assumed that the Contract Manager will travel to Santa Barbara
to attend meetings on two occasions. All applicable travel expenses are included:;

e Itis assumed that one HDR team member will attend up to 4 Monthly Board meetings as directed by
COMB;

e Itis assumed that meetings with Member Units will be combined to the extent possible and will occur on
two different trips to Santa Barbara; and
e  USBR design records will be accessible.

Deliverables:

e  Figures, narratives, notes, presentations, and spreadsheet calculations developed during completion of
the above services.

Task 2 ~ Preliminary Screening Assessment of Alternatives

The intent of this task is to brainstorm and then evaluate potential alternatives based upon their ability to meet
project objectives. The task will include evaluation of pumping alternatives brought forth by the COMB Member

Units as well as those formulated by the COMB and HDR study team. Services performed by HDR as part of this
task are anticipated to include:

¢ Facilitate design review meetings at COMB;
e  Develop alternative approaches and configurations that consider the identified criteria, constraints and
opportunities, including:
o Evaluate EPS capacity to deliver at a 10%, 20% and 30% reduction from existing demand,

recommend a capacity scenario that triggers an emergency response, and recommend a design
target that meets the project objectives;

o Interim use of existing siphon pipe for outlet tower;
o The use of downstream reservoirs (Laurel, Ortega, and Carpentaria) as a means of leveling flows
delivered by the EPS and reducing peak demand;
o Alternate methods for conveying water into the intake tower gates; and
¢ ldentify long-lead procurement items and advantages/disadvantages associated with owning or renting;
e  Prepare a summary spreadsheet of each alternative considered;
e Develop a screening level alternative comparison matrix;

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page 2 of 8 February 17, 2015

item #5
Page 5



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015

e Prepare Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) Life-Cycle Costs (ROM) for alternative comparison which will

include estimated construction, operation, maintenance, and replacement costs for the anticipated
project duration;

Assumptions:

°  HDR assumes that COMB will make available an Excel worksheet {or requested results thereof) prepared

by Stetson Engineering that allows input of any assumptions to produce the information necessary for
alternative operational scenarios;

s Any information relative to lake volume, use, etc. can be requested from Stetson Engineering through
COMB;

°  The budget assumes that up to two HDR team members will attend two 2-hr design meetings at COMB’s
office in Santa Barbara. Workshop agenda and materials will be prepared by HDR. Coordination with
potential attendees will be COMB’s responsibility;

e The alternative’s matrix will incorporate up to five alternatives which will be evaluated against up to five
weighted screening criteria;

o All anticipated costs will be prepared to a Class V level of detail with budgetary range of -20% and 40% of
anticipated actual cost; and

Deliverables:

e Facilitation of alternatives development workshop

Task 3- Present Project Definition Summary

HDR will a summary project definition to the COMB Board will incorporate input received, updated or new

information and Board direction into the RFQ and RFP prepared as part of other tasks. HDR services under this task
are anticipated to include:

e Meet with COMB staff to prepare for the presentation;

¢  Prepare materials for use in the presentation which is anticipated to include information developed under

the infrastructure issues contained in Task 1 as well as input provided during meetings with Member
Units; and

Assumptions:

o COMB will provide HDR with target date for COMB Board meeting as HDR recognizes that materials must
be prepared and incorporated into the Board Packet in advance of the actual meeting date.

Deliverables:

e Draft and final electronic copies of Presentation Materials for COMB Board Meeting

Task 4A - Prepare and Administer Request for Qualifications Process

Concurrently with the above HDR will assist COMB with the development of a Request for Qualifications {RFQ) to

be followed by a Request for Proposal {RFP - see Task 48) at the appropriate time Services provided by HDR as
part of Task 4A are anticipated to include:

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page3of8 February 17, 2015

item #5
Page 6



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015

e Prepare “Notice Inviting Qualifications” which is to be advertised by COMB;

e Prepare a Request for Qualifications, describing the project, minimum qualifications, Statement of
Qualifications {SOQ) submittal requirements, and the DBOM selection process;

e Assist COMB in facilitating the formation of an independent Selection Panel, and administration of the
process of soliciting and evaluating statements of qualifications;

e ldentification and informal notification of known Design-Build entities having capabilities and possible

interest in a project of this nature;

Facilitate the meeting of the Selection Panel, including 2 method of scoring teams for the development of

a short list; and

e Prepare documentation recommending a short list of three to five DBOM teams for Board Approval.

Assumptions:

¢ HDR will advertise the RFQ through normal bid solicitation outlets used by COMB (newspapers, plan
rooms, etc.) as well as others identified by HDR.

Deliverables:

e  Draft and final electronic copy of the Draft Request for Qualifications;
s Attendance and facilitation of Selection Panel meeting; and
e Electronic memorandum documenting recommendation of DBOM short list.

Task 4B - Prepare Design-Build-Operate-Maintain {DBOM) Request for Proposal {RFP) Package

HDR will formulate a draft and final RFP that will include proposal instructions for short-listed Design-Build entities
and describes basic performance criteria for a preferred water delivery system including the EPS along with a
description of the general configuration preferred by COMB. These will be included in a package that further
defines DBOM responsibilities, ancillary project requirements and requirements for preparing a detailed
Guaranteed Maximum Price {GMP) proposal for COMB review and approval. HDR will also prepare an updated

Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) to verify initial project budgeting. items to be developed by HOR for
COMB for the RFP package may include:

e Assisting COMB with development of DBOM Contract Agreement and Terms and Conditions assistance
e Prepare an updated Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC)
s Definition of project Phases and DBOM general scope of services
1. Phase 1 - Concept Level Design, preconstruction activities, and development of GMP proposal
2. Phase 2 - Completion of Design and Construction
3. Phase 3 —- Operations and Maintenance
¢  Project Schedule Milestones
e  Meetings
e  Project Constraints and Restrictions
e Design-Builder Permit Acquisition
e Project Permit Requirements
@  Design Criteria
s Concept level design drawings sufficient to illustrate major project components and design intent which
may include the following drawings :
1. Title sheet, vicinity map, general notes

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page4of 8 February 17, 2015

ltem #5
Page 7



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015

2. Overall site plan, with topography / bathymetry, pump plant location, pipeline atignment, staging
areas, power source

Pumping platform plan
Pumping platform sections and elevations
Pumping platform details
Outlet tower plan and section
Qutlet tower details
Pipeline details
. Electrical plan
10. Electrical single-line and control schematics
+  Minimum Standards for Materials/Equipment
e Minimum Standards for Installation
+  Proposal Submittal Requirements
o Proposed Project Approach

© @ NV AW

o Proposed Project Schedule

o Construction Sequencing Plan

o Calculations supporting Approach

o Equipment Recommendations

o Phase 1 Lump Sum Fee {Concept Level Design}, pre-construction, and GMP proposal
development}

o Phase 2 Budget Estimate (Design completion, equipment procurement, construction costs)

o

Phase 3 Budget Estimate (operations and maintenance costs)
o Phase 2 and Phase 3 Fee on Cost of Work {Represented as a % applied to Cost of Work defined in
the DBOM Contract Agreement and Terms and Conditions for Design-Builder Profit)

Assumptions:

e  DBOM solicitation documents will be provided at the 50%, draft final, and final levals of completion for
COMB review;

s COMB will provide HDR with any standards, formats, terms, or legal requirements that are specific to
COMB and which must be incorporated into the solicitation package;

e  COMB will take the lead in developing the DBOM Agreement and Terms and Conditions;
¢  COMB will provide legal review of documents; and

* A minimal number of drawings will be required for the DBOM package.

Deliverables:

s Electronic copies of DBOM solicitation documents at the 50%, Draft Final, and Final level of completion;
and

e  Updated Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Task 5 - Project Permitting

HDR will develop technical background information needed to prepare project permitting documents and provide
it to COMB to facilitate securing agency approvals of the proposed construction activities.

Assumptions:

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page 5 of 8 February 17, 2015

ltem #5
Page 8



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015
o COMB will be the project proponent/owner;

COMB will identify permitting requirements and prepare all permit applications and necessary
documentation;

o COMB will provide legal review of the prepared documents; and
COMB will make the actual submission of permitting packages and will be responsible for associated fees,

Deliverables:

o Miscellaneous narratives, summaries, and figures containing general arrangements, details, quantities, or

other information necessary to be incorporated into permitting documentation prepared by COMSB,

Task 6 ~ Support During the Request for Proposal Process

Under this Task HDR will assist in the response to Design-Builder Requests for information {RFV's) during the

proposal phase, and assist COMB with Design-Builder evaluation and selection. HDR services as part of this task
are anticipated to include:

e Preparation of an Agenda and facilitation of a pre-proposal meeting with COMB at the proposed project
site;
o Prepare documentation of the meeting
e Preparation of written responses to questions or RFi’s generated by the RFP documents;
e Maintaining a tracking log of all questions and RFis submitted during the proposal phase;
e Preparation of needed RFP addendums;

e Develop an evaluation matrix for comparing competing proposals;

Facilitate meeting of Selection Panel including a review of scoring process for proposals and interview;
e  Facilitate interviews of DBOM teams; and

e  Prepare documentation recommending selected DBOM team for Board Approval.

Assumptions:

¢ COMB will provide legal review of the evaluation results;
e COMB will approve all answers to questions and RF{’s prior to distribution of responses;

e For budgeting purposes, HDR anticipates participation in development of up to two Proposal
Documentation Addenda; and

e COMB will make the final selection of the DBOM and provide all notifications.

Deliverables:

e Electronic copy of Pre-bid proposal Meeting Documentation;

e Electronic copies of Written responses to Questions/RFI's;

o  Electronic copies of Contract RFP Addenda, if needed;

¢ Electronic copes of Bid Evaluation Matrix and evaluation comments; and
o  Electronic copy of Recommendation of award documentation

Task 7 - Pre-Award Activities

Under this task HDR will assist COMB in validating the proposal submitted by the apparent selected proposer.
Under this task, COMB and HDR would meet with the selected proposer to verify they fully understand the

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page 6 of 8 February 17, 2015

Item #5
Page 9



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015

requirements of the project and have prepared a balanced Phase 2 Budget Estimate which is commensurate with
the proposed project scope. HDR will compare the Phase 2 Budget Estimate to the OPCC developed by HDR to
identify any major discrepancies. Any items where Phase 2 Budget Estimate is significantly different than HDR’s
OPCC, HDR will engage the selected proposer in discussions on the cost basis used for estimating to allow
reconciliation of two cost figures, Based on the above, elements of project risk priced into the Phase 2 Budget
Estimate, or price deviations due to a lack of project understanding can be discussed in the meeting to determine if
the Phase 2 Budget Estimate is truly reflective of the project requirements. Particular attention will be paid to

potential risk mitigation thru changes in contract requirements that can lead to cost savings for COMB. HDR
services under this task are anticipated to include:

e Review selected proposer submitted materials;
®  Review Proposed Phase 2 Budget Estimate and verify that it reflects Phase 2 contract documents;

¢ Preparation of Draft Agenda for a meeting with the selected proposer to review the project requirements;
s Preparation of draft Agenda for a Pre-Award Negotiations Meetings; and
e Assistance in a presentation to COMB Board for award.

Assumptions:

e All reviews will result in a draft and final summary report submitted to COMB; and

©  The Pre-Construction meeting will be held with the apparent successful proposer at COMB offices
followed by a visit to the project site.

Deliverables:

o  Electronic copies of summary reports and comments (selected proposer submitted materials, Cost data
comparison);

e Agendas and meeting documentation (Verification Meeting, Pre-Construction Meeting); and
¢ Electronic copies of the conformed Contract Documents.

Task 8. Engineering Services Relative to Emergency Pumping Facility Operations

HDR will act at the direction of COMB to perform additional engineering and project administration related
activities throughout the initial operational period of the emergency pumping supply facility. The following
services will be performed by HDR on an as-requested basis up to the not-to-exceed value of this task.

o  Coordinate with COMB and the DBOM Contractor to resolve start-up and operations issues or concerns as
needed;

e Coordinate and attend meetings via conference call or in person to address technical issues as they arise;

»  Develop screening level feasibility assessments of future operational scenarios, pipeline modifications,
pipeline storage options, power requirements, or others as requested by COMB;

Provide technical assistance, assessments, calculations, narratives, and figures as requested by COMB in
accordance with operation of the facility;

e Work with COMB to address foreseeable risks, uncertainties, and opportunities not already included in

the DBOM contract and generate DBOM contract amendments to be implemented at the discretion of
COMB; and

s Work with COMB environmental staff to address concerns with regard to ongoing environmental permit
stipulations and to review water supply forecasting which have bearing on facility need.

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page 70of 8 February 17, 2015

ltem #5
Page 10



COMB Emergency Pumping Supply Project Scope of Services

As Amended on February 17th, 2015
Assumptions:
e Theinitial level of effort budgeted for this task is based upon a weekly average of 5 hours distributed
among various HDR disciplines.

e Services required beyond the not-to-exceed budgeted amount will require additional contract
amendments.
Deliverables:

e General technical assistance, assessments, calculations, narratives, figures, and attendance at meetings as
requested by COMB.

Task 9. Engineering Related Services as “Owners Representative”

The intent of this task is to facilitate HDR's role as “Owner’s Representative” and to provide technical support as
requested by COMB relative to ongoing operations and maintenance goals. The following services are to be
performed by HDR on an as-requested basis up to the not-to-exceed value of the task.

e RFQ development for the purposes of identifying and selecting a list of on-call contractors that can
respond to operations and maintenance emergency projects;

e Review current SCADA system and documentation proposed by others and make recommendations on
how to proceed in the best interest of COMB;

e  Coordinate and provide technical and project management specific recommendations with regard to the
maintenance and repair of COMB'’s water supply infrastructure as requested by COMB; and

e  Provide technical assistance, assessments, calculations, narratives, and figures in accordance with COMB's
operations and maintenance infrastructure improvements.

Assumptions:

e Other technical services may be developed and added to this scope of work as contract amendments as
needed by COMB.

Deliverables:

»  General technical assistance, assessments, calculations, narratives, figures, and attendance at meetings as
requested by COMB

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page8of8 February 17, 2015

ltem #5
Page 11



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANGCE BOARD
EMERGENCY PUMPING SUPPLY FACILITY PROJECT

PROPOSED CONTRACT AMENDMENT

EXHIBITH
& >
4 ¥
R Eognening o > x f 3 N 4?5' j f -«’;
o e s oo é f j’ f' F /) E/8 /858 H
d’f .«.’Ff K & .f\ K < rd s
Ll Tasks B Subaasks L'f.m SOy Cowd | Conmuses | GowdSmers | VawReouoes | agwasrne
tor Vansger curr Enjowe er [
s wa o5

2502

L

2681 e ¥ 01485

HOR Enginesrng, fne.

TERElY T esEw)

Pago 81

Prisdad 21772013

ltem #5
Page 12



CACHUMA OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BOARD
EMERGENCY PUMPING SUPPLY FACILITY PROJECT
PROPOSED CONTRACT AMMENDMENT - OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES

EXHIBITB

Other Direct Costs
Travel Expenses Cost
Air Fare - look up actual airfare $380.00
Airport Parking/Day (assumes 5-7 days) $20.00
Car Rental/week with tax - standard size $275.00
Truck Rental/Mo. (inclds gas + mileage) $1,500.00
Lodging - look up actual lodging rates $159.00 |
Meals $71.00 |
Gas/gal $3.401
HDR Owed Vehicle Mileage/Mile $0.750 |
POV Mileage/Mile $0.575
Travel Expense Total
Office Expenses Cost
Technology Charge* $3.70
Copies/Page 8.5x11 B&W $0.05
Copies/Page 8.5x11 Color $0.15
Copies/Page 11x17 B&W $0.09
Copies/Page 11x17 Color $0.30
Bond Plots - B&W {per sa. ft.) $0.14
Bond Plots - Color (per sq. ft.) $0.90 |
Express Mail $2500 |
CD - 1st CD $20, each add. Copy $10 $20.00 |
Conference Calling - per min per fine $0.05 |
Office Supplies-Msc. (binders etc) $25.00 |
Office Supplies Total
Total ODCs
ODC Markup 0%
Total ODCs + MU
Subcontracts

No Subcontractors
Subcontracts Total
Markup on Subs 5%

Total Subcontracts + MU

Total Work Order {(without
Subcontractors)

* Technology Charge is calculated as total labor hours times $3.70 per hour for HDR labor.

Printed 2/17/2015
ltem #15

HDR Engineering, Inc. Page B2
: Page 13




Mission Statement:

*To provide a reliable source of water
to our member agencies in an efficient and cost effective
manner for the betterment of life in our communities.”

DATE: February 23, 2015

General Manager Report

e  USBR Site Inspection
COMB is routinely requested by USBR to provide a status update to
USBR Category 1 recommendations. The cross connection to the SCC is
the single Category 1 recommendation outside the control of COMB. As
previously noted, USBR requested the impacted Member Units (MU)
prepare surveys of cross connections and take corrective action to ensure
the existence backflow protection. One MU has responded and the other

anticipates completion of a survey and report prepared by a certified cross
connection inspector this month.

COMB staff has completed modifications of four Air Vacuum Release
Valves on the SCC. Staff is currently developing a project planning and
completion schedule to be presented to the Operations Committee.

e NP Elevator Rehabilitation
The North Portal Elevator rehabilitation is complete. Final inspection of

contracted work by COMBs design contractor is complete. Cal/OSHA has
issued a temporary operating permit.

e  Santa Barbara County Drought Task Force (DTF)
COMB continues to provide project and grant status updates to the DTF.

e  Encroachment
Staff has initiated internal procedures for recording and tracking
encroachments that will ultimately be incorporated in the Operations
Division computerized record system (Field Mapplet).

The draft Infrastructure Improvement Program will contain information on

existing encroachments that potentially pose an operational risk to the
SCC.

The Right of Way Program effort has obtained information from USBR to
enable the research of Easement Deeds maintained by the County Clerk
Recorder Office to determine specific information contained within

1]

item #7
Page 1



individual easements. The collection of Easement Deeds (property owner
information) is ongoing.

o  Drought Emergency Pumping Facility Project

1. Construction Status

o  The pumping system is operational and is in a standby mode
until operation becomes necessary. The most recent estimate
of factors impacting lake elevation indicate the system may not
be required until late April or early May. The system is tested
monthly by the contractor.

o  The PG&E transformer and electrical switch gear remains
protected by fencing and security personnel is on site.

o  Discussions are underway regarding relocation of the pumping
barge and related issues.

o Pipe retention alternative storage options are under review for
consideration following disassembly of the EPFP.

2. Grant Funding

Grant funding agreement documents have been completed and
formalized between the participating Member Units, the Department

of Water Resources (DWR) and the State Water Resources Control
Board (SWRCB).

o SWRCB invoice information has been provided to the MUs
o DWR invoice information is being developed with that agency.

e  COMB Office Buildings

Investigation into replacement options for modular buildings is continuing.
Following staff review a recommendation will be brought to the
Administrative Committee.

e Division Manager Comments

See Attachment (A) for Emergency Pumping Facility Project expenditure detail.

Respectfully mitted, -
e,

General Manager

2|

ltem #7
Page 2



EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT FY 2014/2015

AS OF: 1/31/2015
FY 14/15 APPROVED BUDGET
Drought Contingency Planning ACCT #6108 -
Emergency Pumping Facility Project ACCT #6120 4,708,000.00

Total Budget Approved
FY 13/14 Unexpended funds (unapproved projected)

$ 4,708,000.00
7,649.44 *Acct #6108
$ 4,715,649.44 Total funds available FY 14/15

FY 13/14 DROUGHT CONTINGENCY-EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT
CONSULTANTS BUDGET EXPENDED BALANCE Description

Environ Strategy 60,000.00 9,191.50 50,808.50 [Project Management Services

HDR Engineering 198,748.00 178,645.48 20,102.52 |Develop proj def; assist w/RFQ-RFP, etc

MPG - Environmental/Legal 50,000.00 80,622.32 (30,622.32}{Environmental / Legal fees

Permits 8,045.25 8,045.25 - |CDFW-$4,912.25 / RWQCB-$3,133

PG&E 7,000.00 7,000.00 - |On-going project electrical charges

Smith, Watts & Martinez 20,000.00 20,000.00 - Lobbyist-drought relief funding

SYRWCD ID#1 (Stetson) 5,000.00 4,025.17 974.83 |Work authorized by RW/TR

Miscellaneous 33,206.75 119.72 33,087.03 [Non-Contract Incidental charges

Cushman Contracting 350,000.00 350,000.00 - |Phase | designs/mobilization/fsite prep

HDR Engineering 50,000.00 - 50,000.00 |Project Management fees

Contractor 54,000.00 - 54,000.00 jEvaluation of NP gates, stems, guides

VAG 150,000.00 152,272.44 {2,272.44)|Stems for gates 1-5

PG&E - 107,370.37 (107,370.37)|Electrical Installation contract

Cushman Contracting** 528,840.00 {528,840.00)|JE of Phase 1l Jun work from FY 14/15

FY 2013/2014 Totals $ 986,000.00

$ 1,446,132.25

S {460,132.25)

FY 14/15 EMERGENCY PUMPING FACILITY PROJECT

CONSULTANTS BUDGET EXPENDED BALANCE Description
Cushman Contracting 3,568,000.00 3,018,632.12 549,367.88 |Construction - Phase 1I/Operations
Contract Management 150,000.00 - 150,000.00
PGE Construction 750,000.00 20,792.00 728,208.00
PGE Monthly Costs 240,000.00 111,907.00 128,093.00
PGE Electricty charges 19,009.88
RMC Water & Environment - 24,533.50 {24,533.50)|Prop 84, Grant Application support
Rodney Hunt-Fontaine - 540.00 {540.00)|Stems/guides-cast/engineering
SY Band of Chumash - 1,914.30 (1,914.30){Field monitoring
Bank of Santa Barbara - 22,485.00 {22,485.00)|Loan fees {CVWD/GWD/MWD only)
Misc 1,188.00 1,188.00 Materials, supplies, Permits, etc.

$ 4,709,188.00 | $ 3,221,001.80

** This entry/amount is representative of the JE as
required by the Auditors to expense Phase Il Inv#2B,
worked performed in June 13/14, to proper Fiscal Year.
This Phase Il work was included in FY 14/15 budget.

COMBINED FY 13/14 & 14/15 Totals
EXPENDED BALANCE
$ 4,667,134.05 | $ 1,047,063.83

BUDGET
$ 5,695,188.00

QB Reconciliation 1,446,132.25 QB Total Expenditures FY 13/14
3,221,001.80 QB Total Expenditures FY 14/15

s 4,667,134.05

ltem #7
Page 3




CACHUMA OPERATION & MAINTENANCE BOARD

BOARD MEMORANDUM

Date: February 23, 2015

Approved by: Randall Ward

SUBJECT: Member Unit Water Allocations ~ Dispute Resolution Procedure and
Remedies

SUMMARY:

Per request from the Carpinteria Valley Water District representative, Al Orozco, attached is a proposed
dispute resolution procedure to be followed if a Member Agency receives an over allocation of entitlement

water from the Cachuma Project. The procedure, if adopted, would establish procedures and remedies to
be available if necessary.

FISCAL IMPACTS:

N/A

LEGAL CONCURRENCE:

Dispute Resolution Procedure and Remedies were drafted by the COMB General Counsel.

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE:

N/A

COMMITTEE STATUS:

Reviewed and approved by Administrative Committee for submittal to Board of Directors for
consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Administrative Committee recommendation.

LIST OF EXHIBITS:

1. Dispute Resolution Procedure

ltem #8

Page™




Cachuma Operation & Maintenance Board
Dispute Resolution Procedure and Remedies

Member Unit Water Allocations--Dispute Resolution Procedure and Remedies

A, Issue

Disputes involving water allocations may arise in the future between COMB Members, or
between a COMB Member and COMB. Specifically, it is possible that a COMB Member will take
delivery of more Cachuma Project water during a water year, which runs from October 1 through

September 30 of the following year, than the amount allocated and charged to that COMB Member
by contract.

B. Procedure

1. Water Delivery Notices. So long as COMB continues to receive monthly reports of the
amount of Cachuma Project water delivered to each COMB Member, COMB shall use its best
efforts to provide a written warning notice to any COMB Member whose water deliveries have
reached 80% of that COMB Member’s water year allocation. Thereafter, within thirty (30) days
after COMB identifies a water delivery in excess of 100% of a COMB Member’s contractual
allocation, COMB shall provide an “over allocation” notice to that COMB Member and shall deliver
a copy to the other COMB Members.

2. Excess Water Cost Estimate. Also within the thirty (30) days after COMB identifies a
water delivery in excess of 100% of a COMB Member’s contractual allocation, COMB shall prepare
and submit a cost estimate to the COMB Member that took delivery of more Cachuma Project water
than its allocated amount, and shall deliver a copy to the other COMB Members. The cost estimate
shall specify the amount of excess water that the COMB Member has received as of the date of the

cost estimate and the then prevailing market price and the source of that price for purchasing excess
water.

3. Meeting and Resolution. Within thirty (30) days after the date of the “over allocation”
notice and cost estimate, the COMB Member that received excess water shall present to COMB and
the other COMB Members any written challenge (the dispute) to the notice and/or cost estimate.
The General Managers of COMB and the other COMB Members (or, in the case of the City of Santa
Barbara, its Director of Public Works or designee) (collectively “the General Managers™) shall meet
as soon as reasonably practical after the expiration of the thirty (30) day challenge period to: (a)
attempt to resolve any written dispute that may have been presented by the COMB Member that
received excess water; and (b) impose a remedy(ies) for the excess water delivery. Any resolution
and/or remedy(ies) shall be in writing and shall be presented to the COMB Member that received
excess water, and to the COMB Governing Board for its information, within thirty (30) days after
the meeting of the General Managers.

Item #8
Page 2



4. Remedies. One of two remedies, or any combination thereof, may be imposed by the
General Managers upon a COMB Member that received excess water: (a) the COMB Member may
be billed at the prevailing market price for the excess water, or at such higher price as any other
COMB Member pays to purchase replacement water; and/or (b) the COMB Member may have its
water allocation for the following year reduced by such amount, which may include a penalty
amount, as the other COMB Members shall decide. The General Manager of COMB shall not
participate in the choice or terms of the remedy(ies) unless required to break a tie among the four
participating COMB Member General Managers. Any excess water bill imposed pursuant to this
paragraph shall be paid within thirty (30) days to COMB by the COMB Member that received
excess water and that payment shall be distributed by COMB to the other COMB Members in

proportion to their water allocations for the water year during which the excess water delivery
occurred.

S. Arbitration. Within thirty (30) days after approval of the proposed resolution by the
COMB Members, or within sixty (60) days after the meeting of the General Managers if no
resolution has been approved by the COMB Members, any COMB Member or COMB may submit
the matter in writing to binding arbitration before a mutually agreed arbitrator or panel of arbitrators
for determination. The decision of the arbitrator is final and the COMB Members and COMB shall

abide by the decision of the arbitrator. The cost of the arbitration shall be borne equally by the
parties.

C. Implementation. There are no substantive provisions in the existing Joint Exercise of
Powers Agreement (“Joint Powers Agreement™) that address what happens if a COMB Member
takes more than its allocated share of Cachuma Project water. Likewise, there are no procedural
dispute resolution provisions in the Joint Powers Agreement. The COMB Members in their
discretion could amend the Joint Powers Agreement to establish a process to address excess water
allocation disputes. Since these issues and their resolution could be understood to involve water
rights, an amendment pertaining to this issue would need to be approved unanimously by the COMB
Members per Section 1.3(h)(i) of the Agreement.

Subject to the unanimous approval requirement of Section 1.3(h), the COMB Board could
also establish this process by “policy.” Section 1.7 of the Joint Powers Agreement authorizes the
Governing Board to, among other things, adopt bylaws, rules and regulations for the “conduct of
its...affairs.” Further, Sections 3.5(g) and (h) of the Joint Powers Agreement, at a minimum,
impliedly provide the COMB Board with the authority to address disputes. Section 3.5(g) authorizes
COMB “to perform all acts necessary or proper to carry out fully the purposes” of the Joint Powers
Agreement. Section 3.5(h) authorizes the COMB Board to “enter into” and “negotiate...such
Cachuma Project agreements, operations agreements, Cachuma Member Unit water agreements,
agreements for maintenance of water rights, and other agreements associated with the ownership,
operation, rights, and appropriations of the Cachuma Project and ancillary issues.”

ltem #8
Page 3



